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Mission  

To guide the State in the right direction to efficiently and effectively achieve the 

set of goals and objectives for building a developed Sri Lanka 

  

Objectives 

i. Contribute effectively, efficiently and actively to make the vision of the Hon. President a 

reality. 

ii. Assist to perform the functions vested in the Hon. President by the Constitution and 

various Acts and Ordinances effectively and efficiently as per the legal provisions.  

iii. Take measures to effectively carry out the regulatory and coordination tasks 

accomplished by the Presidential Secretariat.  

iv. Coordinate the development tasks performed by the ministries and the different 

sections and facilitate as required.  

v. Implement all the management tasks relevant to the Presidential Secretariat with a 

functional relationship.  

vi. Alleviate the public distress / issues caused due to the administrative misuse, 

negligence or delays.  

vii. Make the necessary strategic intervention to alleviate the poverty and development 

issues.  

viii. Offer the benefits effectively to the community by creating an updated data approach.  

ix. Increase the opportunity of offering benefits to the community by participating more 

effectively to implement the state programmes.  

x. Ensure the public welfare.  

Vision  

“A fully developed Sri Lanka by 2048” 

Chapter 01 

Institutional Profile / Implementation Summary 
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1.4 Organizational Structure 
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1.5 Major Divisons under the Presidential Secretariat  

1) Office of the Chief of Staff   

2) Office of the Private Secretary to the President     

3) President Secretary’s Bureau    

4) Constitutional and Statutory Affairs Division     

5) Parliamentary and Cabinet Affairs Division   

6) Human Resource Management and Administration, Transport Division     

7) Economic Affairs Division     

8) Strategic Affairs Division    

9) Food Security and Infrastructure Projects Development Division    

10) Agriculture Productivity and Land Division     

11) Agency Coordination Division   

12) ICT and Digitalization Division    

13) Northern Province Coordination Division     

14) Internal Audit Division 

15) Community Affairs Division        

16) Accounts and Finance Division 

17) Legal Affairs Division   

18) Special Projects Division 

19) Economic Stabilization Division   

20) President’s Media Division   

21) Public Relations Division     

22) Presidential Trade Union Relations Division        

23) Ombudsman of the President’s Office 

24) President’s Fund   

25) Policy Implementation and Monitoring Division   

1.6 Funds established under the Presidential Secretariat  

1) President’s Fund 

 1.7 Information of the Projects Receiving Foreign Aids  

a. Project Name: Food Donations Programme  

b. Contributing Agency: United Nations World Food Programme  

c. Estimated Cost of the Project: Rs. 23,360 Million  

d. Duration of the Project: 2023 – 2027  
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2.1 Progress 2023 

2.1.1 Policy Guidance 
 

Transforming Sri Lanka into a country with a developed economy by the time the 100th 

independence celebration in 2048, under a programme which steers competitive, open 

and social justice based development, which focused on achieving sustainable economic 

growth has been declared as the goal of the Government.  
 

The major thematic areas of the strategic roadmap which are being implemented within 

the midterm framework  entered into in the year 2023  taking forward the initiatives 

launched since the year 2022, indicated as follows.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

2.1.1.1 Ensuring Macroeconomic Stability 

Since July 2022, where the current Hon. President assumed duties in his office, 

numerous measures are being taken to reprieve the economic crisis arisen in the early 

2022, and to stabilize the economy  and to revive the overall economy of the country 

under the new government and the progress achieved as indicated below. 
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 Implementation of the Extended Fund Facility (EFF) of the International 

Monetary Fund 

The Extended Fund Facility (EFF) of the International Monetary Fund has been 

designed as a comprehensive economic reform programme that rests on  several 

reforms in order to restore macro-economic stability and public debt sustainability in 

Sri Lanka while it contains fiscal consolidation, implementation of a stronger social 

safety net to protect the most vulnerable, a multi-pronged strategy to restore price 

stability, a sovereign debt restructuring strategy and rebuilding international reserves 

under greater exchange rate flexibility and broader structural reforms aimed to 

addressing corruption issues. 

Accordingly, as per the 48- month agreement under the Extended Fund Facility (EFF) 

entered between International Monetary Fund and Sri Lanka in the year 2022, (USD 3 

billion) the EFF was approved on 20th March 2023 under the Extended Fund Facility 

programme. Thus, including the second tranche, a total Special Drawing Rights of 508 

million (about USD 670 million) were disbursed. Further, an agreement was reached on 

economic policy level to conclude the second review of this programme.  

 

 Improvement of  Government Revenue and Reviewing the Expenditure  
 

Tax laws revised by the Budget 2023 to revise the tax structure and rectify the tax 

irregularities, is in effect from 01.01.2023 and thereby it is anticipated to further 

restore the macroeconomic stability in future.  
 

Some significant measures taken towards public expenditure management in the year 

2023 mentioned below;  

 Expenditure control and rationalized measures including stern circular 

instructions.  

 Granting five (05) year no pay leave for public sector employees for selected 

purposes. 

 A Committee of Officials presided by the Secretary to the Prime Minister was 

appointed for reviewing the recruitment process of the Public Service. 

Accordingly, this committee is responsible for; identification of priorities in 

respect of the essential recruitments to be made in order to maintain the Public 

Service in a more efficient and effective manner and recommendation of time 

frames, and submission of appropriate recommendations for the issues already 

arisen in the Public Service, are carried out by this committee. 

 The Parliamentary Budget Office has been established following enactment of 

the Parliamentary Budget Office Act No. 6 of 2023. 

 Establishment of Public Expenditure Review Committee (PERC) to review and 

submit recommendations on the expenditures of ten (10) Ministries with high 

expenditure. 
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 Policies and Reforms such as enactment of the Banking (Special Provisions) Act 

No. 17 of 2023, for reforms in the banking sector, have been introduced which 

support the financial stability.  

 

Outcomes acquired through the reforms made including the above strategies as 

follows;   
 

i. Controlling the Inflation  

Subsequent to the Colombo Consumer Price Index (CCPI) based year-on-year headline 

inflation recorded its highest rate in the history at 69.8 percent in September 2022, it 

was able to decelerate to 1.3 percent of a minimum value in September 2023. 
 

Continuous monitoring is important to control the inflationary pressure and to assist 

the macroeconomic stability even though the inflation expectations of the stakeholders 

of the economy rest in a favorable level to a greater extent due to decelerated Inflation 

from very high level to a single digit level within less than one year. 

 

ii. Significant Growth in Economy 
  

Sri Lanka economy recorded a slight positive growth (1.6%) in the third quarter of the 

year 2023 after the negative economic growth (- 12.4 %) recorded in the fourth quarter 

of the year 2022. Further, a positive economic growth of 4.5 percent could be acquired 

in the fourth quarter of the year 2023 raising this growth further up. The overall annual 

growth in the year 2023 has acquired a significant growth of negative 2.3 percent (-

2.3%) compared to the overall annual growth of minus 7.3 percent (-7.3%) in the year 

2022. Similarly, it has been able to enter a path of growth, recording a growth rate of 

positive 2.3, negative 9.2 and negative 0.20 in the year 2023 in agricultural, industrial 

and services sectors respectively compared to the growth rate of negative 4.2, negative 

1.6 and negative 2.6 recorded in the year 2022 in agricultural, industrial and services 

sectors respectively. Further, GDP per Capita of USD 3,464 recorded in the year 2022 

has accelerated up to USD 3,830. Overall, the Central Bank has forecasted that economic 

growth will be able to maintain a positive level in the year 2024. 

 

iii. Developments in the External Sector  
 

The deficit in the merchandise trade account, declined to the lowest since 2010 to USD 

4900 million in the year 2023 compared to the deficit of USD 5185 million in the 

merchandise trade account recorded in the year 2022. The Central Bank indicated that, 

the decline in the import expenditure as compared to the export income has largely 

resulted for this condition, and the imports continued to remain in a low level despite 

recent relaxations on import restrictions. 
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Similarly, workers’ remittances recorded a robust value around USD 6.0 billion in the 

year 2023 compared to the workers’ remittances of around USD 3.8 billion recorded in 

the year 2022.  Tourists arrivals continued to increasing recording 1,487,303 tourist 

arrivals in the year 2023 indicating a notable growth twice as the amount recorded in 

the year 2022 due to the enormous attention drawn to ensure the economy, political 

and security stability .Accordingly, tourist earnings too increased up to USD 2,068 

million in the year 2023 compared to the USD 1,136 millions recorded in the year 2022. 

It is recorded that, from India, Russia, United Kingdom, Germany and China which 

indicated highest number of tourist arrivals to Sri Lanka in 2023. 
 

Further, net foreign investment inflows were recorded in the Government Securities 

Market and Stock Exchange. Similarly, Gross official reserves which remained at a value 

of around USD 1.9 billion by the end of the year 2022 improved to a notable USD 4.4 

billion by the end of December 2023 by means of the net purchases of foreign exchange 

from the domestic foreign exchange market by the Central Bank and the loan 

disbursements under the Extended Fund Facility of the International Monetary Fund, 

and the external financing received from the multilateral funding agencies. 
 

And also, the Sri Lanka rupee which remained at a value of Rs.363.11 against the US 

dollar by the end of the year 2022, appreciated to Rs. 323.92 by 12.1 per cent  against 

the US dollar by the end of the year 2023. 
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2.1.1.2 Establishment of the Necessary Infrastructure for an Optimal Economic 

Governance and Economic Decision-making  
 

Necessary measures are continuously being taken towards the improvement of 

efficiency in public investments, minimization of corruption risks and in support of the 

financial discipline through elimination of structural weaknesses of the economy and 

better economic governance. 
 

 Enhancement of Economic Resilience  
 

 Parliamentary Budget Office Act No. 6 of 2023 has been enacted with effect 

from 27th June 2023 for establishment of a fully independent Parliamentary 

Budget Office to pursue a specific road map prepared according to a national 

economic policy for the next 25 years and to ensure its proper fiscal 

operational performance. 
 

 Implementation of Zero-Based Budgeting method in formulation of the next 

Budget for a prudent cost management. To this end, Public Expenditure 

Review Committees for the 10 Ministries receiving the highest budget 

provisions. 30 members with expertise in the respective subjects have been 

appointed in accordance with the Cabinet Decision No. 23/0256/604/030 dated 

06.02.2023. Final reports of 7 committees have already been submitted to the 

Cabinet of Ministers by the Public Expenditure Review Committee (PERC) and 

the recommendations of the said reports have been taken into consideration 

for the Budget 2024. 
 

 Steps have been taken to enact the Central Bank of Sri Lanka Act No. 16 of 

2023 with effect from 14 September 2023 so as to upraise the autonomy in 

decision making related to Monetary Policy and facilitate the Central Bank of 

Sri Lanka to operate as a more independent body and members have been 

appointed to the Governing Board and the Monetary Policy Board of the 

Central Bank of Sri Lanka in terms of the Act. 
 

 Complying with the United Nations Conventions against Corruption, steps have 

been made to enact the Anticorruption Act No. 06 of 2023 with effect from 08 

August 2023 introducing considerable improvements to the Anticorruption 

legal framework and organizational provisions to confront corruption and this 

Act will largely contribute to align the legal framework of Sri Lanka with the 

international standards and best practises. 
 

 The progress of Colombo Port City will create a substantial impact on the 

country's Gross Domestic Product (GDP), Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) 

inflow, and new employment generation. As legal tasks of this venture, No.01 

of 2023 of Colombo Port City Rules (Duty Free Operations) was officially 

published. 
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 Similarly, the Parliament of Sri Lanka approved Guidelines proposed by the 

Colombo Port City Economic Commission, for granting exemptions or 

incentives for the businesses which have been named as Businesses of 

Strategic Importance (BSI). This was published by the Extraordinary Gazette                                  

No. 2343/ 60 dated 04th August 2023. 

 

  Public Enterprise Reforms  
 

There are 52 number of identified strategically important public enterprises have 

incurred a loss of Rs.443 billion within the period of 5 years from 2017 to 2022. The 

Restructuring Unit have been established under the purview of the Ministry of Finance, 

Economic Stabilization and National Policies and is being operated with the objective of 

bringing in reforms for eight (08) selected enterprises out of the above public 

enterprises for provision of goods and services to the public at a reasonable price, 

creation of a more competitive business environment and minimization of the financial 

burden thereby incurred on the government by the said enterprises. 
 

Cabinet approval has been received for 7 public enterprises out of the above. Holding 

company has been registered and the transaction advisors have been appointed while 

Expressions of Interest (EOI) have been received in respect of 3 public enterprises. 
 

 Reforms in the Power and Energy Sector  
 

 Taking measures such as implementation of recovery pricing strategy, fuel 

price formula, adjustment of end-user electricity tariffs and improvement of 

Bulk Supply Transaction Account (BSTA) to measure the electricity subsidy 

accurately for ensuring the financial sustainability of service delivery. 
 

 Ensuring energy security by bringing in competitiveness to the energy sector; 

The Petroleum Products (Special Provisions) (Amendment) Act No.27 of 2022 

was passed to enhance the competitiveness of the field, covering all the 

business sectors. Steps have been taken to introduce more suppliers such as 

Sinopec Fuel Oil Lanka (Pvt) Limited, United Petroleum, Shell PLC - RM Parks 

for the distribution mechanism of fuels.  Accordingly, Sinopec Fuel Oil Lanka 

(Pvt) Limited has commenced its operations by the end of August in 2023.  

 

 Addressing Climate Challenges  
 

The National Climate Change Bill has been forwarded to the relevant preliminary 

stakeholders aiming to inclusion of further matters and amendments. Managing and 

regulating the greenhouse gas emissions, low carbon development measures, adapt to 

the adverse effects of climate changes, coordinate and monitor climate change related 

activities and monitor and, facilitate the financing of projects and programmes related 

to climate changes are focused in this bill. 
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  Promotion of Technology Digitalization 
  

 An Expert Committee comprised of the experts in the information Technology 

sector and the public officials was appointed under the Presidential Secretariat 

in June 2023 to formulate a strategic plan for the development of Artificial 

Intelligence (AI) aiming to utilize AI for the economic development and social 

progress while a white paper prepared in line with the said strategic plan, was 

presented in March 2024. The proposed strategic plan is due to be submitted 

by the end of May 2024. 
 

 National Digital Economy Acceleration Initiative (DIGIECON) was launched in 

October 2023 for promoting a digital economy.  
 

 The Digital Technology Act is being prepared and subsequent enactment of the 

Act, actions shall be taken to establish a Data Protection Authority, promote 

electronic payments, assist the preparation of a digital platform for tax 

administration, and extension of the information communication technology to 

minimize the post-harvest losses.  

 

 Land Reforms 
 

Issues and delays occurs in identification, acquisition, or alienation of lands on 

lease basis land due to the non-availability of a land policy which facilitates the 

attraction of investments. Activities such as introduction of a new Land 

Acquisition Bill, Preparation of the Preliminary Bill for establishment of the 

National Land Commission and forwarding it to the Cabinet of Ministers, 

Carrying out preliminary activities related to disposition of lands only through 

the Divisional Secretaries and establishment of the State Lands Trust, have been 

initiated to address the aforesaid issues expeditiously.  

 

 Agriculture Modernization 
 

 An Agricultural Modernization Strategic Framework is formulated under 16 

thematic areas and it is proposed to be implemented within a time framework 

of  25 years in  three phases. (Phase I - 2023-2028, Phase II- 2029-2038,  Phase 

III - 2039-2048). A committee has been appointed to drafting a policy, and 

members have been appointed to the Agricultural Modernization Secretariat 

established in the Presidential Secretariat in order to launch this programme 

with utmost priority and proper coordination.  
 

 Actions are being taken to uplift the operations of the selected NLDB farms and 

establish them as commercial enterprises under the Government to 

Government (G2G) collaboration frame work with the Government of India in 
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order to transform the Diary Industry to a state of self-sufficiency from its state 

of deficiency and dependence on imports which exists at present and a joint 

declaration in this regard was signed with the Government of India on 21st 

July 2023. 
 

 Formulation of a National Policy Framework for modernization of the 

Agriculture Sector and appointment of a Committee of Experts for the said 

purpose; An implementation mechanism has been formulated while prepare a 

road map through fifteen (15) crop categories and, reviewing the reports of 

Sub Committees under the patronage of secretaries to line ministries has been 

done. 
 

 Steps have been taken to establish a Department of Cinnamon Development 

according to the Cabinet Decision No. 23/1501/601/050 dated 14.08.2023.  

 

 Transformation of Sri Lanka to a Year - Round Tourist Destination 
 

 The main target of tourism industry in Sri Lanka is to increase tourist arrivals 

up to 2 million and to earn an income over USD 5 billion. It is expected to 

acquire new markets such as Japan, Korea, Georgia, Australia, New Zealand and 

countries in Eastern Europe while focusing on nine major markets including 

India, Russia, United Kingdom, Germany, France and China.  

 The National Tourism Policy and Strategic Plan was submitted to the Cabinet 

of Ministers by the Tourism Policy Committee appointed under the 

Presidential Secretariat, with the intention of establishing a sustainable 

tourism industry.  Instructions have been issued by the Cabinet of Ministers to 

obtain views of all the stakeholders in this regard.  

 Preparation of the Nuwara Eliya Tourism Development Master Plan remains at 

the final stage.  
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2.1.1.3 Enhancement of the Competitiveness of the Sri Lankan Economy  
 

The Government envisages to strengthen the growth-promoting forces immensely, 

under the stringent measures taken to revitalize the economy.  
 

 

 Creating an Investment Friendly Environment 
 

The Government has taken numerous positive measures to foster a business enabling 

environment by means of upgrading the procedures to facilitate the processes for 

delivering the necessary services at a minimum cost, within a minimum period of time 

following a simplified procedures and, institutions to improve transparent operations 

while implementing macroeconomic initiatives and measures to create a favorable 

environment for the investors. 
 

Task Force Committees (an 8 committees) comprised of 54 public entities which are 

responsible for fulfilling the mandatory services required at every stage of a business 

such as commencement of a business, operation and expansion, and for provision of 

various business services have been established and relevant action plans have been 

developed in order to carry out institutional system development/reforms on a priority 

basis.    

 Starting a business; Entering into Memorandum of Understanding with the 

Department for Registration of Persons to link with the other relevant 

institutions to expedite the delivery of services provided by the 

Department of the Registrar of Companies. The digital signature application 

is being improved to further enhance the efficiency of the electronic 

Registration of Companies (e-ROC) system. 
 

 Issuance of Certificates of Conformity for constructions; Expediting the 

issuance of Certificates of Conformity  via One Stop Unit established by the 

Urban Development Authority (UDA) at present and thereby expediting the 

signing Memoranda of Understanding with other institution related to 

issuance of Certificates of Conformity. Carrying out discussions to provide 

the One Stop Unit facility to other institution related to issuance of 

Certificates of Conformity. 
 

 Registration of Properties; Taking action to allocate Rs.106 million to 

expedite the information system installation process proposed by the 

Western Provincial Revenue Department, Survey Department and Colombo 

Municipal Council. 
 

 Trading across Boarders; Arrangements have been made to establish the 

National Trade Facilitation Committee (NTFC) under a proper monitoring 

Ministry and the necessary preliminary actions have been take to re-

prioritize the targets of cross border trade facilitating goals. 
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 Provisions for Credit Facilities; Legislative processes are being expedited 

to ensure swift provision of credit facilities.   
 

 Resolving Insolvency; A Comprehensive new law (Bankruptcy Law) has 

already been drafted with the support of the sub-committee appointed by 

the Law Commission of Sri Lanka upon the assistance extended by the 

World Bank.  
 

 Enforcement of Agreements;  Earmarked an allocations of approximate            

Rs. 30 million to the Ministry of Justice, Prison Affairs and Constitutional 

Reforms to construct a new commercial court complex to expedite the 

litigation process of commercial disputes.   
 

These Performance of the relevant institutions during the period of 2022-24 against 

the respective action plans within the specified timeframes is being closely 

monitored though the above Task Force Committees under the Presidential 

Secretariat. 

 

 Labour Market Reforms 
 

 A draft document has been formulated to enactment of a new, updated and 

consolidated labour law benefitting the both employer-employee and the 

economy. 
 

 Introducing a new National Education Policy; A Cabinet Sub Committee 

consisting of 10 Ministers, presided by the Hon. President was established 

to formulate the National Education Policy enabling to identify the short, 

medium and long term transformations required in the education system 

and a new educational policy for Sri Lanka. The National Education Policy 

Framework 2023-2033 (NEPF), was formulated by the Expert Committee 

which is comprised of Government, private sector and non-government 

stakeholders to assist the Cabinet Sub Committee. The NEPF was submitted 

to the Cabinet of Ministers on October 2023 and approval granted. The 

National Educational Policy Framework has been submitted to the Sectoral 

Oversight Committee on Education in the Parliament and expected to the 

subsequent approval of the Parliament. 
 

 Re-designing the Institutions and the Vocational Qualifications 

Framework of the Skills Development Sector; Recommendation of 

necessary reforms to implement the vocational skills and training 

framework in the country in line with the proposed national education 

policy framework are being done by a Committee of Experts with the 

participation of the private sector and the other stakeholders. 
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 Trade Liberalization and Improvement of Market Access 
 

As a key component of the economic reform programme of the government, geared 

towards revitalizing the economy, the Government aims to gain access to the 

regional and global supply chains and to re-establish connections with to encourage 

export -oriented direct foreign investments (FDI). In this context, 
 

 Minimize the existing international trade barriers; Waive the import CESS 

within 3 years and the Airport Levy (PAL) within 5 years from 2023. The first 

phase of this action has been implemented as per the Sri Lanka Export 

Development Act, No. 40 of 1979,   by extra-ordinary Gazette No. 2325/06 

dated 28.03.2023 and extra-ordinary Gazette No. 2326/02 dated 03.04.2023. 
 

 Trade Facilitation 

-  Conducting close reviews on the performance of the National Trade 

Facilitation Committee (NTFC) every three (03) months in implementation 

of preferential trade facilitation components. Re-prioritizing the activities 

of the Trade Facilitation Action Plan targeting prompt implementation. 
 

- Establishment of National Single Window (NSW)  as a medium term 

solution; Multiple platforms which are in operation for submission of the 

required document and data on cross-border trade flows in international 

trade will be directed to a single point of entry. 
 

 International Trade 

The Government has taken measures to reach comprehensive free trade 

agreements aiming the large and emerging economies with the intension of 

boosting exports. In this context, the Government has established a National 

Trade Negotiation Committee and negotiations on Free Trade Agreements 

which are of strategic importance aiming at the markets in India, China, 

America, Singapore, Bangladesh and Thailand have been carried out by the 

said committee. These negotiations has been carried out under the guidance of 

Presidential Secretariat with the representations of the Ministry of Trade, 

Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Ministry of Commerce and the 

Department of Trade and Investment Policy etc. Simultaneously, stakeholders 

including various chambers of Trade/Industry and organizations will be made 

aware in this regard. 
 

 Office for International Trade (OIT) ;  
 

Necessary preliminary activities to establish the legal framework for the 

International Trade Office (OIT) has been completed and a staff consisting of 

06 officers including the Chief Negotiator of the International Trade Office has 

been appointed. Further, the National Trade Negotiations Committee (NTNC) 

were re-established and 10 Sub Committees were established in terms of the  
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Cabinet Decision No. 22/1664/601/020 dated 17.10.2022 to conduct the 

negotiations on free trade agreements and representatives from different 

government institutions have been appointed for negotiation committees. 
 

Accordingly, negotiation sessions were held in coordination with the said 

committees in the year 2023 as follows.  
 

 Sub-Committee on Trade in  Goods : 09 sessions with Thailand and 

Bangladesh  

 Sub-Committee on Trade in Services : 03 sessions with Thailand 

 Sub-Committee on Investments : 09  

 Sub-Committee on Rules of Origin : 05 

 Sub-Committee on Sanitary and Phyto-sanitary Measures : 04 

 Sub-Committee on Technical Barriers to Trade: 03 

 Sub-Committee on Customs Procedures and Trade Facilitation: 01 

 Sub-Committee on Trade Remedies: 07 

 Sub Committee on Economic Cooperation: 01  

Facilitation has been extended for coordination and negotiations of various 

stakeholders in addition to the above sub-committees. 

 

 Trade Agreements 

Coordination of negotiations and signing of on-going Free Trade Agreements (CSLFTA, 

SLTFTA, ETCA). These rounds of negotiations were conducted in coordination with the 

Office for International Trade. 
 

 Thailand- Sri Lanka Free Trade Agreement (SLTFTA); 5 rounds of 

negotiations have been held from January to June 2023 and the agreement was 

signed on the 03rd February 2024 with the participation of the Prime Minister of 

Thailand. 
 

 Conduct negotiations on the Economic and Technical Cooperation 

Agreement (ETCA) with India; The 12th round of negotiations of this 

agreement was held from 30th October to 01st November. 
 

 China Sri Lanka Free Trade Agreement (CSLFTA); Sri Lankan has informed 

the willingness to resume negotiations and informed the same in writing and the 

preliminary arrangements has been commenced. 
 

 Bangladesh - Sri Lanka Preferential Free Trade Agreement (PTA - 

Bangladesh)  

Approval of the Cabinet of Ministers has been granted on 27.02.2023 to resume 

the negotiations. The 4th round of discussions were held with the sub-committees 

on trade in goods and trade in services through virtually on 29.05.2023. A 

technical committee meeting was held on 20.09.2023 and the offer lists have 
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been prepared and forwarded to Bangladesh on 27th September 2023. 
 

 Indonesia - Sri Lanka Preferential Free Trade Agreement (PTA - Indonesia) 

A negotiation on the Indonesia-Sri Lanka Prefferential Free Trade Agreement was 

held through virtual media on 29.08.2023. Further actions are underway for the 

signing of the Joint Statement between Sri Lanka and Indonesia. 
 

 Sri Lanka - Singapore Free Trade Agreement (SLSFTA);  

Coordination with the Ministry of Trade and the Department of Commerce to 

conduct negotiations on the Sri Lanka Singapore Free Trade Agreement.  The 

approval for the resuming Free Trade Agreement has been granted by the 

Cabinet of Ministers. 
 

 Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP) 

A Sri Lankan delegation held a meeting with the Chairman of the ASEAN 

Organization (ASEAN) in Jakarta on June 12 and 13 , 2023, to make preliminary 

arrangements for joining the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership 

(RCEP). The Letter of Intent declaring the willingness to obtain the membership 

has been forwarded to the Chairman of the ASEAN on 28.06.2023, and meetings 

were held in July and August with officials from the countries like Indonesia, 

Thailand, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, Vietnam, Myanmar, Malaysia, China and 

South Korea where the Embassies and High Commissions of Sri Lanka have been 

established out of the RCEP member countries, regarding Sri Lanka's willingness 

and interest in obtaining the RCEP membership. Further, 06 groups have been 

established (trade in goods, intellectual property, economic and technical 

cooperation, legal affairs, public procurement and services and investment) to 

study the 20 chapters contained in the Regional Comprehensive Economic 

Partnership (RCEP) Agreement, and meetings have been held in the said respect. 
 

 Sri Lanka - America Trade and Investment Framework Agreement (TIFA) 

The 14th Council meeting of the Trade and Investment Framework Agreement 

(TIFA) between Sri Lanka and the United States of America was held on 

September 18, 2023 in Colombo with the participation of a delegation including 

the U.S. Ambassador to Sri Lanka. The Sri Lankan party thereby presented 

proposals/issues under the main themes of agriculture, capacity building and 

technical assistance, market access and technical barriers to trade and digital 

economy, while the American party presented proposals/issues under the main 

themes of investment policies, agriculture, customs and trade facilities, 

intellectual property and ease of engaging in businesses. Suggestions/problems 

were presented under the main headings of convenience.  
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 National Productivity Commission 
 

The approval for the establishment of a National Productivity Commission was 

granted at the meeting of the Cabinet of Ministers held on 14.08.2023, and a 

Committee of Experts was appointed accordingly for provision of the necessary 

information to prepare the basic draft and its scope. Accordingly, the approval 

of the Cabinet of Ministers has been received to present the National 

Productivity Commission Bill and the Certificate of Constitutionality obtained 

from the Hon. Attorney General to the Cabinet of Ministers seeking the approval 

for tabling the said Bill in Parliament and the relevant Bill for establishment of 

the Commission due to be submitted to the Attorney General’s Department and 

the Final Bill to the Parliament. 
 

Enactment of the Productivity Commission Act, appointment of a basic staff and 

establishment of the proposed commission will be done in the year 2024. 

Provisions for this purpose have been allocated by the Budget Proposals 2024. 
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2.1.1.4 Ensuring the Social Inclusiveness of all Communities  

 Build Consensus among Different Groups 
 

 Establishment of National Council in Parliament  

Establishment of the National Council in Parliament; The establishment of the 

Parliamentary Committee called “National Council” consisting of the Members 

of Parliament  representing the respective political parties was passed in 

Parliament on 20.09.2022. The Council will guide the formulation of short, 

medium and long-term national policies and assist in the programmes geared 

towards stabilization of the economy and it has appointed two Sub-Committees 

to identify the short and medium term programmes related economic 

stabilization and to identify priorities in formulation of short, medium, and long 

term national policies. As decided by the Parliamentary Sub-Committee of the 

National Council,  a draft committee report on establishment of a National 

Policy Commission has been prepared  and submitted to all the Members of 

Parliament by a committee consisted of Senior Officials presided by the 

Secretary to the President. 
 

 Introduction of the Youth Parliament Act 

The Bill of the National Youth Parliament has been submitted for the approval of 

the Cabinet of Ministers. A committee has been appointed at the Ministerial 

level and the new Bill containing the revisions made by the Cabinet of Ministers 

is to be submitted to the Cabinet of Ministers. 
 

 Social Empowerment, Responsibility and Accountability, and Strengthening 

Social Security Network  
 

Adoption of new eligibility criteria to identify low income families for the 

implementation of new welfare benefit payment scheme and payment of welfare 

benefits. 
 

The approval of the Cabinet of Ministers has been granted on 17.04.2023 for the 

proposed scheme for Payment of Welfare Benefits to the beneficiaries and it has been 

published in the Gazette Notification No. 2328/13 dated 21.04.2023. With the 

accomplishment of this task, money transferred directly to the bank accounts of the 

beneficiaries (through the electronic systems). the Welfare Beneficiary Board undertake 

the actions regarding this matter.  
   

 Aswesuma Social Welfare Programme; The concurrence of the Cabinet of 

Ministers  on payment schemes of Aswesuma Social Welfare Benefit Programme 

has been granted on 31.07.2023 and it covers around 18 million beneficiaries. 
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 10 kg of rice per month was distributed to each of 28.5 million low-income 

families across the island within 02 months under the rice distribution 

programme. 

 A hotline number has been established in the Presidential Secretariat and 

introduced to the public to submit their problems directly to the Presidential 

Secretariat. 
 

 A loan scheme has been introduced through the Regional Development Bank 

(RDB) covering all the districts and a loan scheme has been to encourage young 

women entrepreneurs under the budget allocation of Rs.250 million and  actions 

have been taken to distribute Rs.50 million among 200 selected young women 

entrepreneurs as a pilot project. 
 

 The amount of provisions allocated under the programme of providing meals to 

school children have been raised from Rs. 4 billion to in the year 2023 in the year 

2023. 

 

 Empowerment of Groups with Special Needs. 
 

Following measures have been implemented by the Government with the objective 

of empowering the groups with special needs.   

Protection of Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act; Protection of Rights of 

Persons with Disabilities Act; The approval of the Cabinet of Ministers has been 

granted to formulate an appropriate Bill in compliance with the United Nations 

Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, thereby the identified 

shortcomings.  
 

 Truth and Reconciliation Mechanism Bill; the bill has been submitted to the 

Cabinet of Ministers and published in the Government Gazette while an Interim 

Secretariat has been established and appointed the staff for the same.  
 

 Food Security 

Under the monitoring of the Presidential Task Force on Food Security; 

Creating space to exchange surplus food produced in the area at food exchange 

centres in other religious places including temples. 
 

Household data (1.7 m households) have been collected and uploaded to the “Food 

Gate” computer application. This programme was implemented by the National 

Food Security and Nutrition Unit and the support of the Green Agriculture 

Operations Center established under the Chief of Defence Staff, has also been 

extended for this purpose. 
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 Northern Province Coordination 
 

Northern Province Coordination Division (NPD); A special Division was established 

in the Presidential Secretariat with the objective of identification and provision of 

solutions to the main issues undergone by the people residing in the Northern Province 

due to long-term conflicts. A special sub-office of this Division has been established in 

the Vavuniya District of the Northern Province and to activate the unit, a Cabinet Sub-

Committee on Reconciliation has been established with the chairmanship of the Hon. 

President under the approval of the Cabinet of Ministers. Resolving the issues faced by 

the people in the Northern Province through coordination of the activities of the Cabinet 

Sub-Committee, has been assigned to this Special Division.  
 

 Implementation of a new development plan for the Northern and Eastern 

provinces, taking into account the socio-economic requirements of the 21st 

century. 

 Tasks related to the identification and release of land owned by the Tri Forces; 

tasks related to releasing and surveying lands in Jaffna, Kilinochchi and 

Mullaitivu districts, are currently in progress. 

 Identification of the current situation of the displaced persons and carrying out 

the tasks of settling them accordingly. 

 

Under this Division; 

 Office on Missing Persons; 384 investigations have been conducted in 

Kilinochchi, Mannar, Jaffna and Mullaitivu. 
 

 Office for Reparations; Arrangements have been made to provide financial 

relief of Rs. 770 million by September 30, 2023 for 1770  of missing persons 

due to the conflicts prevailed in Northern and  Eastern Provinces. 
 

 Establishment of the Office for National Unity and Reconciliation. 
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President’s Fund 
 

The President's Fund, established under Act No. 7 of 1978, operates for the provision of 

funds for the relief of poverty, for the advancement of education or knowledge, for the 

advancement of the religions, for the making of awards to the persons who have served 

the nation and any other purposes which is in the opinion of the President and the 

Board of Governors beneficial or of interest to the public. An amount of Rs. 14.29 million 

has been granted for eradication of poverty, welfare activities, other educational 

activities and religious activities. Similarly, Rs. 1365.01 million for the Mahapola 

Scholarship Programme and Rs. 153.37 million has been granted for scholarships. 

Further, Rs. 844.5 million has been granted to the patients as medical assistance. 
 

i. Awarding Scholarships 

  Awarding of higher education scholarships of Rs. 5000.00 each was 

commenced having selected 3000 students of low income families from 100 

Education Zones, who have passed the G.C.E. (O/L) examination in the year 

2021 (2022) and eligible to study for the G.C.E. (A/L) examination and 10 

monthly installments have been paid as at present.   

 Monetary awards and certificates have been granted to 90 students who 

have displayed outstanding skills under each subject streams at the G.C.E. 

(A/L) examination 2021/2022. 

 

ii. Provision of Medical Assistance 

 Payment of an amount subject to a limit of Rs. 200,000.00 of the amount 

spent on eye surgeries performed in this country for the  children under 21 

years of age, by the President's Fund, 

 Provisions which were thus far reserved only for cancer treatment and 

medicines are also provided for surgeries performed at semi-public or 

private hospitals. 
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2.2 Future Outlook 

 Adopting a National Economic Transformation Roadmap into the Economic 
Decision-making Process 

 
As development stakeholders have also commented, despite the economic crisis, Sri 

Lanka's progress so far has been satisfactory. What is needed going forward, however, 

is to ensure a sustainable recovery underpinned by the right policies and institutions, 

and in particular, the implementation of a robust growth strategy that is inclusive. 

In this process of economic growth, it is necessary to identify new economic avenues 

that evolve away from traditionally adopted strategies, especially to acquire new 

production capabilities, knowledge and technology that stimulate the diversification to 

the economy. 

The government believes that addressing the country's untapped potential will increase 

the economic performance, thereby creating more quality jobs and returning the 

country to a sustainable growth path. It is also a prime goal of the government to 

improve competitiveness of the country and improve service delivery through 

continuous economic and institutional reforms. 
 

For this, a better economic governance and decision making process will be established to adapt 

the economic decision making process to a specific methodology that does not change from time 

to time. 

 

 The need for a national economic transformation road map 

The government aims to ensure that Sri Lanka achieves full development as a 

prosperous nation by 2048. In making Sri Lanka a fully developed state, the government 

aims to prevent the country from falling into an economic crisis like it once happened, in 

the next 25 years. 
 

To this end, efforts are being made to bring the process into a legal framework in order 

to prevent the occurrence of economic recession again in the country and to ensure the 

continuous contribution, unchanging responsibility and accountability of existing 

governments and major transformations of the economy in order to achieve long-term 

macroeconomic goals and development goals.  

Within that strong legal framework, the government intends to establish a mechanism 

through which Parliament will exercise oversight control in the exercise of the powers 

and responsibilities of the Cabinet of Ministers. The main objective of this is to prevent 

the recurrence of a situation that will lead to a widespread economic recession in the 

country in the future due to wrong political decisions. 

Here the government will give highest attention to the following dynamics and seek to 

reach a common consensus on the priorities and tasks associated with them;  
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- Rapid changes in the global economic environment due to continuous 

improvements in technology, changing demographics and emerging 

environmental challenges globally 

- The importance of economic transformation to promote sustainable 

development, increase fertility, raise productivity, promote social progress and 

ensure equal opportunities for all citizens. 

- The critical role of investment in driving economic growth, creating jobs and 

fostering innovation and technological progress 

- To ensure that Sri Lanka is committed to developing a transparent, 

comprehensive and rules-based system that promotes fair and equal treatment 

of both domestic and foreign investors. 

- The importance of international trade as a catalyst for economic growth, 

promoting competitiveness and facilitating the integration of economies into the 

world market. 

- The imperative need to enact legislation that provides an enabling environment 

for investment, expanded trade opportunities and trade agreements and 

facilitates import and export activities to spur economic growth. 

- Reaffirming Sri Lanka's commitment to international cooperation and support to 

address global challenges and provide opportunities for mutual benefit. 

 

 Introduction of the Economic Transformation Law  

Based on the facts mentioned above, an Economic Transformation Law will be enacted 

to confirm the accountability of the Parliament of Sri Lanka in principle to a national 

transformation road map to be implemented uninterruptedly in the next 25 years. The 

draft Economic Transformation Bill prepared with this aim was approved by the 

Cabinet of Ministers for submission to the Parliament on 13.05.2024 and published in a 

gazette and tabled in the Parliament on 21.05.2024. 

Main Objectives ; 

i. To make realisation by all citizens of an adequate standard of living for 

themselves and their families, including adequate food, clothing and 

housing, the continuous improvement of living conditions and the full 

enjoyment of leisure and social and cultural opportunities; 
 

ii. To create rapid development of the whole country by means of public 

and private economic activity and by laws prescribing such planning and 

controls as may be expedient for directing and coordinating such public 

and private economic activity towards social objectives and the public 

wellbeing, and, 
 

iii. To avoid an economic crisis.  
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This, it is hoped, will provide intensive guidance in prudent economic decision-making 

and ensure that government actions are accountable to the public. It will further create 

stability and predictability of economic policies, which are essential factors for 

developing investor confidence and promoting sustainable economic growth. Investors 

and businessmen need to be assured that economic decisions are made in a stable and 

reliable manner. 

This will promote effective economic management that requires consideration of such 

as environmental, social, economic and especially inter-generational aspects with a 

long-term strategic approach. It will cover provisions that prioritize sustainable 

development, environmental protection and social welfare, guiding governments to 

make decisions that prioritize the well-being of current and future generations. 

The principles/conditions agreed in principle with the International Monetary Fund and 

other stakeholders have been incorporated into the Economic Transformation Law. It 

includes the policy framework intended to guide the transformative actions the 

government must undertake economically in the long term. 

In the task of restructuring the debt to be paid by the government according to the 

national policy principles of economic transformation; 

i. that Public debt-to-GDP ratio to fall below five percent by 2032 and 

thereafter  

ii. that the ratio of the annual gross monetary supply requirement of the 

central government to the gross domestic product be reduced to more 

than 13 percent by the year 2032 and thereafter; and  

iii. that to reduce the central government's annual debt servicing ratio to 

GDP by 4.5 percent by 2027 and thereafter will be dealt with. 
 

In addition, the governmnet has to take action to transform Sri Lanka into a highly 

competitive export-oriented digital economy; 
 

i. Diversification and deep structural changes of the national economy to 

boost competitiveness; 

ii. Achieving Net Zero by the year 2050; 

iii. Increasing integration with the global economy; 

iv. Achieving stable macroeconomic balances and sustainable debt; 

v. Modernize agriculture to boost farmer productivity, farmer incomes, and 

agriculture exports; and 

vi. Promote inclusive economic growth and social progress. 
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Furthermore, the responsibility of basing the national policy on economic 

transformation on the following goals is assigned to the existing Cabinet of Ministers; 
 

i. GDP growth – reaching 5% per annum by 2027 and above 5% per annum thereafter. 

ii. Unemployment to fall below 5% of the workforce by 2025. 

iii. Women's labor force participation to reach a level of not less than 40% by the year 

2023 and to reach a level of not less than 50% by the year 2040. 

iv. Current account deficit in balance of payments should not exceed 1% of GDP 

annually. 

v. Export of goods and services as a percentage of GDP. Reaching a level of not less 

than 25% of GDP by the year 2025, reaching a level of not less than 40% by the 

year 2030 and reaching a level of 60% by the year 2040. 

vi. Reaching the primary balance of the government's budget to a level of 2.3% of GDP 

by 2032 and at least 2% of GDP from 2032 onwards. 

vii. From 2027 onwards, government revenue will reach a level of at least 15% of GDP 

and 

viii. Multidimensional poverty rate should be below 15% by 2027 and below 10% by 

2035. 

 

In order to enforce the national policy on economic transformation, every five years starting 

from 2025, the Council of Ministers should prepare a report on the policy framework and 

strategies and the minister in charge of economic policy should submit the report to the 

Parliament and the first report will be submitted in the year 2025. . 
 

 Establishing a new organizational structure 

To support the government in order to achieve this entire process with an integrated 

approach, the role of the following institutions will be important; 

- Economic Commission of Sri Lanka, 

- Sri Lanka Investment Zones (Zone Sri Lanka), 

- International Trade Organization, 

- National Productivity Commission, and 

- Sri Lanka Economic and Trade Institute 
 

The provisions for the establishment of these institutions and their role are included in the 

Economic Transformation Bill. With the introduction of the Economic Transformation Law, 

the Sri Lanka Board of Investment Law No. 4 of 1978 will be superseded and the Sri Lanka 

Board of Investment will be replaced by the Sri Lanka Economic Commission and the Zone 

Sri Lanka Institution. 

Major initiatives expected to be undertaken through this new organizational framework; 
 

 Formulating national policies on investment, international trade and investment zones 

and recommending the same to the Council of Ministers 

 Making the necessary policy interventions to increase income streams and large-scale 

employment opportunities for Sri Lankan citizens by creating and maintaining a 

strong investment environment and facilitating sustainable foreign direct investment 
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that encourages international trade by increasing exports. 

 In particular, promoting the creation of a business enabling environment for investors, 

investments and exporters. 

Determining investments of strategic importance that can generate quality 

employment opportunities for the youth and professionals of Sri Lanka through the 

export of goods and services and achieve significant benefits for the overall growth of 

the economy and review the incentives to promote such investments of strategic 

importance and make recommendations to the Minister. Presentation. 

 Recommend policy initiatives and interventions to the Cabinet that will help to 

develop policies that encourage international trade and thereby diversify sources of 

foreign exchange and increase export earnings to expand Sri Lanka's economy. 

 Making recommendations in declaring investment zones. 

 Attract foreign direct investment in a more proactive and targeted manner to sectors 

and sub-sectors that contribute strongly to the economy in a way that contributes to 

economic diversification and technological advancement with greater export 

orientation. 

 Ensure policy coherence, strategic alignment and synergy between institutions in 

terms of investment and international trade. 

 Ensure a strong incentive to align international trade negotiations directly with Sri 

Lanka's strategic export and investment promotion objectives. 

 More proactively driving the expected benefits of the trade & investment nexus 

 Improvement and development of industrial infrastructure for investors as well as 

professional management of such infrastructure, management and freedom to provide 

opportunities to private investors for regional development 

 Facilitate national policies on judicious establishment, management and management 

of investment zones which contribute immensely to investment, international trade 

and exports. 

 Ensuring that every investment zone maintains a conducive environment for 

investment and thus increases employment opportunities. 

 Promotion and development of Sri Lanka's international trade as a key strategy to 

strengthen the country's economic base. 

 Deregulation of the country's trade practices, attracting export-oriented investments 

for Sri Lanka to effectively connect with global supply chains 

 Developing global market access and improving trade facilities through free trade 

agreements 

 To increase the export of Sri Lankan goods and services by removing or reducing 

market entry barriers and facilitating the entry of Sri Lankan goods and services into 

international markets by the Office for International Trade. 

 The Office for International Trade, as the apex body established to promote 

international trade activities including bilateral trade agreements and regional trade 

agreements, should carry out that task in good coordination with all relevant 

institutions and stakeholders. 

 Improving productivity in all sectors of the economy to maximize the benefits of 

economic stabilization reforms and ensure their sustainability. 
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 Establishment of an independent body to look into productivity issues and 

recommend policy guidelines to the government based on evidence and data. 

 Investigate productivity issues based on research and evidence and advise government 

on productivity-oriented economic policies and measures. 

 To provide education to members of parliament and officers on economic and trade 

affairs and policies and to impart knowledge and knowledge to relevant parties in the 

creation and implementation of policies related to their subjects. 

And the 2024 budget proposals mark the initial progress of essential reforms aimed at 

advancing economic development. Despite the challenges and potential contradictions, the 

proposed economic reforms and policies will help Sri Lanka embark on the journey towards a 

stable economy. 

Thus, a rapid transformation of the main components of the economy is expected to occur as 

follows. 

 

 Educational Reforms 

Under the supervision of a Cabinet sub-committee consisting of ten members chaired by the 

President, the Prime Minister and the Minister of Education, a committee of 25 members of 

scholarly officers, presenting proposals on the need for a comprehensive and far-sighted road 

plan to transform the country's education sector. (2023-2033) compiled. The basic objectives, 

strategies and measures required to achieve quality, equity and excellence in the education 

sector are clearly outlined through this framework and are aligned with the national 

development objectives and global goals regarding education. 

This National Education Policy Framework (2023-2033) has presented 3 main policy 

directions for a sustainable transformation of the education sector in Sri Lanka. 

 Review of the legal framework for learning, teaching and certification 

 Redefining parties and institutions responsible for governance 

 Investment and resource optimization 

This envisages the implementation of the following major changes. 

 Expanding opportunities for education through English medium 
 

 Standardized National Curriculum and Assessments according to modernized 

international benchmarks to fit the new world of work 
 

 Less weight on final exams and more focus on project-based assessments 
 

 Transforming the teaching profession through the introduction of certification and 

reward mechanisms and teacher salary revisions to attract qualified personnel - 

Establishment of the National Teacher Professional Council. 
 

 Introducing administrative reforms to further decentralize education administration to 

overcome structural and qualitative factors that hinder the transformation of 

education. 
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 Reorganization of National Skills Commission (NSC) as an authority to replace 

Tertiary and Vocational Education Commission (TVEC) for skill development. By 

the National Skills Commission (NSC), the planning, coordination and development 

of the skills sector of government and non-government organizations at the national 

and provincial levels, conducting annual labor market mapping; Taking steps to 

integrate existing public sector vocational training providers into an affiliated college 

system with the university system; Skill Councils will be set up and tasks will be 

assigned to them as they are established. 
 

 The University Grants Commission will be replaced by the National Higher 

Education Commission (NHEC), which will be responsible for coordinating higher 

education in accordance with national policies and maintaining academic standards 

equivalent to all degrees and degrees issued by non-government or higher education 

institutions. 
 

 A National Quality Assurance and Accreditation Mechanism will provide integrated 

quality assurance and accreditation for early childhood education, schooling, higher 

education and skill development in both government and non-government educational 

institutions at the national level to maintain consistent quality standards. 
 

 Steps will be taken to facilitate the participation of non-governmental partners, 

including public-private partnerships, in all sectors of education. 
 

 Investments in public sector education will be made in a more rational manner. 
 

 Establish a mechanism for awarding competitive grants and/or creating incentives for 

educational institutions to create research culture, innovation in teaching, digital 

transformation of education, partnership with industry and international linkages. will 

be done. 
 

 Efforts will be made to gradually remove restrictions on foreign investment in higher 

education and skill development. 
 

 Modernization of agriculture  

The Agricultural Modernization Secretariat oversees the implementation of the Agricultural 

Modernization Program aimed at modernizing and transforming the agricultural sector in Sri 

Lanka. Under this programme, Agriculture Modernization Hubs are to be established at the 

level of Divisional Secretary Divisions and pilot projects will be implemented in 26 

Divisional Secretary Divisions selected in 25 districts as the initial phase and in the second 

phase, 03 Divisional Secretary Divisions from each district. 75 quotas of agricultural 

innovation projects are expected to be implemented. 

Furthermore, the National Policy Framework for Agriculture Modernization has been 

prepared and submitted to the Honorable President on 04.03.2024. 
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 Public Enterprise Reforms 

Reform programs have been initiated for selected public enterprises (08) and the restructuring 

unit under the Ministries of Finance, Economic Stabilization and National Policy has been 

installed and is operating to monitor the process. It will start from the year 2024. 

 

 Power and Energy Sector Reforms 

 It is expected to adopt and implement the proposed new Electricity Act for 

comprehensive reforms aimed at increasing the efficiency and productivity of the 

electricity generation, supply services and distribution sectors in the electricity sector. 

 As electricity demand grows by 5% annually, developing sufficient generation 

capacity to meet this demand will be done through private investment without 

disrupting sustainable generation. The Cabinet has appointed an expert committee 

which will study and recommend legal and institutional reforms. 

 In an effort to direct Sri Lanka's energy needs to sustainable energy sources, a road 

map for the use of green hydrogen will be prepared and after the feasibility study, 

pilot projects will be implemented in the period of 2024 and 2026, and green 

hydrogen will be used commercially from the year 2026. 

 

 A Green Economy 

In addition, steps are being taken to create a climate initiative unit in the Treasury in line with 

the Sustainable Development Program, and to design an institutional structure that supports 

the implementation of Sri Lanka's Climate Prosperity Plan by creating a Climate Change 

Office in the President's Office, and an international climate change university and a 

multilateral climate change agency. A commission is also to be established. 

 

 Digitization 

 It is expected to restructure the organizational structure related to technology for the 

acquisition of a digital economy by the year 2030, and to establish a digital authority 

with full powers to provide the necessary leadership and guidance for the digitization 

of the public sector 

 Also, a National Center for Artificial Intelligence will be established with the aim of 

making an economic and social transformation based on Artificial Intelligence. 

 In addition, it is also expected to establish a technological innovation council to 

encourage technological innovation by coordinating the public sector, expert 

institutions and civil society. 
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 Supplies 

 

As a first step towards capitalizing on Sri Lanka's strategic location and positioning it as a 

logistics hub, the Government will work with all stakeholders to formulate and implement a 

National Logistics Policy. The objectives of this are to establish land links between Sri Lanka 

and India, to meet the supply needs of South West India through Colombo South Port and to 

meet the supply needs of South East India through Trincomalee Port. The development 

programs expected to be completed in the future will further improve the capacity of the 

Colombo Port after the creation of the Western Terminal of the Colombo Port and the 

Colombo North Port after the year 2030. 

 

 Fisheries Sector 

 

An expert committee is working to prepare and implement a strategic plan based on the 

promotion of the high-level Fishery industry to increase the productivity of the Fishery 

sector. 

 

 Tourism 

National level and sub-national level institutions are expected to implement a new long-term 

program to promote the tourism sector in order to attract at least 5 million tourists in a year 

from 2024. 

A society in which harmony and social inclusion of all groups is ensured 

  "Urumaya" program 

Under the Wasteland Act (1897), the "Inheritance" program will be 

implemented in 2024 to give back the full rights to the land to the farmers who 

lost their land rights and this will ensure that 20 lakh families will get real 

estate and farmland rights in the next few years. 
 

 Achieving income security 

Urban home ownership and estate housing. 

Steps will be taken to give full ownership of the houses built under various municipal 

programs to those low-income earners. Under this, nearly 50,000 families will get home 

ownership in the year 2024 alone. Also, the preliminary work will be started in the year 

2024 for the necessary steps to give land rights to the plantation people. 
 

 “ASWESUMA” 

Three times the amount spent on social security programs in the previous years is 

expected to be spent on the Aswasuma program in 2024 and the experience and 

knowledge of Samurdhi officials will be used to empower the beneficiaries. 

 

 Mountain decade 

Due to the disparities in the distribution of resources due to various reasons, the wealth 

of public infrastructure and services and the quality of life of individuals in the 

mountainous areas are relatively low and to avoid this, identifying the importance of 
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giving priority to rural development in the mountainous areas, Sabaragamuwa and 

Central Provinces and Badulla, Galle, Matara, Kalutara and A ten-year multi-purpose 

rural and community development program will be started from 2024, including 

Kurunegala district and all 89 divisional secretarial divisions belonging to its 

mountainous regions. 
 

 Empowering women 

Efforts will be made to introduce gender-based budgeting and to formulate and enforce 

related laws, as well as to introduce laws for women's empowerment. 
 

 Housing for indigenous people 

Expediting the housing program for families who are still homeless in the northern and 

eastern provinces, providing essential relief and compensation programs for families 

left homeless will continue to be implemented. 
 

 Establishment of National Assembly 

By identifying the unsolved development needs at the rural level and prioritizing them, 

implementing the resource allocation process at the national level in coordination with 

the public representatives representing the respective areas, and with the participation of 

the people, through a formal method, to collectively determine development priorities 

and allocate resources, and to provide the opportunity to directly present those 

development priorities to the government. The National Assembly system will be 

started and as a major step it is proposed to establish the National Assembly Secretariat 

in the year 2024. 
 

 

 Youth Development Programme 

Various ministries and government institutions are implementing many programs 

focused on the development of the youth and it is expected to implement an integrated 

youth development program by coordinating all these programs and containing new 

programs suited to the new economic and social conditions. 

 

 

E M S B Ekanayake 

Secretary to the President 
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Chapter 03  

Overall Financial Performance for the Year ended 31.12.2023 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 
3.1   Statement of Financial Performance 
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3.2  Statement of Financial Position (as at 31.12.2023) 
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3.3 Statement of Cash Flows (as at 31.12.2023) 
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3.4  Notes to the Financial Statements 

 Basis of Reporting 

I. Period of Reporting; 

The period of reporting for these Financial Statements is from 01
st
 January to 31

st 

December 2023. 
 

II.  Basis of Measurement; 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost modified by the 

revaluation of certain assets and accounted on a modified cash basis, unless 

otherwise specified. 

The figures of the Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan rupees rounded 

to the nearest rupee. 
 

III. Recognition of Revenue; 

Exchange and non-exchange revenues are recognized on the cash receipts during the 

accounting period irrespective of the relevant revenue period. 
 

IV. Recognition and Measurement of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that 

future economic benefit associated with the assets will flow to the entity and the cost 

of the assets can be reliably measured.  

Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost and the revaluation model is 

applied when the cost model is not applicable. 

 

V. Property, Plant and Equipment Reserve; 

This Reserve Account is the corresponding account of Property, Plant and 

Equipment. 
 

VI. Cash and Cash Equivalents; 

Cash & cash equivalents include local currency notes and coins in hand as at 31
st
 

December 2023. 
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3.5  Performance of the Revenue Collection: Not Relevant  

 

3.6  Performance of the Utilization of Allocation 

Rs. ,000  

Type of 

Allcation 

Allocation  
Actual 

Expenditure  

Utilization of 

Allocation  

as a Percentage (%) 

of Final Allocation  

Original Final  

 

Recurrent 2,800,200 3,420,600 3,271,529 96% 

Capital 987,800 4,939,400 4,531,555 96% 
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 3.7 In terms of F.R. 208, Allocations granted to this Department/ District 

Secretariat/ Provincial Council as an agent of the other Ministries/ 

Departments 

S. 

No. 

Ministry/ 

Department 

from which 

the Allocation 

were 

received 

Purpose of 

Allocation 

Allocation 

Actual 

Expenditure 

Utilization 

of 

Allocation  

as a 

Percentage 

(%) of Final 

Allocation 

Original 

 

Final 

 

1 

Ministry of 

Public 

Administrati

on, Home 

Affairs,  

Provincial 

Councils and 

Local 

Government 

75
th 

Independence 

Day 

Celebration - 

2023 

21,000,000.00 6,497,000.00 27,496,289.97 100% 

Payment of 

salaries and 

allowances of 

Mr. W.D.M. 

Botheju and 

Mr. C.K. 

Samarasinghe 

59,540.00 59,540.00 11,045.16 18.55% 

2 

Department 

of 

Multipurpose 

Development 

Task Force  

Payment of 

Salaries and 

Allowances of 

Multipurpose 

Development 

Assistants who 

have been 

appointed to 

the Combined 

Service 

135,000.00 628,548.39 628,548.39 100% 

3 
Department 

of 

Pensions 

Settle loan 

balances of 

retiring 

officers 

8,275,386.52 8,275,386.52 8,275,386.52 100% 
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3.8 Performance of the Reporting of Non-Financial Assets 
R. ,000  

Assets 

Code 

  

 

Code 

Description 

  

 

Balance as  

per Board of 

Survey Report 

as at 31.12.2023 

Balance as 

per  

Financial 

Position  

Report as 

at 

31.12.2023 

To be 

accounted in 

the future 

Reporting 

the 

Progress 

as a  % 

  

 

9151 Building and 

Structures 
1,458,219 1,458,219 No 100% 

9152 Machinery 4,909,689 4,909,689 No 100% 

9153 Land 35,646,525 35,646,525 No 100% 

9154 Intangible 

Assets 
No 

No No - 

9155 Biological 

Assets 

No No No - 

9160 Work in 

progress 

No No No - 

9180 Leased Assets 337,842 337,842 No 100% 
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3.9     Report of the Auditor General 
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Chapter 04  

Performance Indicators (based on the Action Plan) 

 

 

 

 

# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

Office of the Chief of Staff 

1 Make necessary intervention and 

provide guidance to formulate 

national policies 

Number of 

interventions 

√   

2 Ensure the effective 

implementation and coordination of 

the meetings and discussions under 

the patronage of the Hon. President/ 

Secretary to the President and Chief 

of Staff to the President, and follow 

up the decisions taken 

Number of meetings 

hold  

Number of meeting 

briefs prepared  

Number of 

follow-ups 

√ 

 

√ 

 

√ 

  

3 Take necessary actions on the 

requests forwarded to the 

Presidential Secretariat through the 

letters, e-mails, telephone calls, fax 

and WhatsApp messages that 

should be specially considered and 

follow up such requests 

Number of letters/ 

requests followed up 

√   

Office of the Private Secretary to the President 

1 

Maintain all the management 

functions related to the Office of 

the Private Secretary to the Hon. 

President  

 

Act as and when 

required 

 

√ 

  

President Secretary’s Bureau  

1 Ensure the effective organizing, 

coordinating and follow-up actions 

regarding the decisions taken 

during the meetings/ discussions 

and special functions/ events 

chaired by the Hon. President, 

Chief of Staff to the President and 

the Secretary to the President 
 

Number of meetings 

hold  

Number of meeting 

briefs prepared  

 

Number of follow-

ups 

√   



        Performance Report   2023    

Page 57 of 121 

 

Presidential Secretariat 

 

# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

2 Take appropriate action on the 

requests forwarded to the President 

Secretary’s Bureau through the 

letters, e-mails, telephone calls, fax 

and WhatsApp messages require 

special attention and follow up such 

requests. 

Number of request 

letters/ e-mail 

messages received to 

the Secretary Bureau 

Number of 

follow-ups/ requests 

√   

Constitutional and Statutory Affairs Division 

1. Appointments made by the Hon. President for various positions in accordance with 

the Constitution and other Statutory Provisions  

1.1 Appointments made in accordance 

with the Articles of the Constitution 

Make appointments 

as and when 

required 

√   

1.2 Appointments made in accordance 

with various Acts and Ordinances  

Make appointments 

as and when 

required 

√   

2. Other Statutory Interventions 

2.1 Activities under the Public Security 

Ordinance and Essential Public 

Services Act 

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

2.2 Grant approval for the appointment 

of Missions Abroad 

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

2.3 Grant presidential pardon under 

Article 34 of the Constitution 

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

2.4 Commissioning Credentials (Tri 

Forces/ Scouts) 

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

2.5 Declare regulations under Urban 

Development Projects Act No. 2 of 

1980. 

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

2.6 Grant approval for leave abroad of 

the public representatives and 

officials (including Independent 

Commissions) appointed by the 

Hon. President 

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

2.7 Matters pertaining to procedures 

adhered to by public representatives 

Perform as and when 

required  

√   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

in the public expenditure 

management.  

2.8 Grant special permission to borrow 

under the Foreign Loans Act No. 29 

of 1957   

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

2.9 Grant special authorization for the 

issuance of international sovereign 

bonds 

Perform as and when 

required  

√   

3. Parliamentary Affairs 

3.1 Prorogation of Parliament Perform as and when 

required  

√   

3.2 Answers to Parliamentary 

Questions  

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

4. Affairs relating to alienation of State Lands under the State  Lands Ordinance and 

Land Development Ordinance 
4.1 Affairs pertaining to the alienation 

of State Lands under the State 

Lands Ordinance and Land 

Development Ordinance 

Grant of the State 

Lands upon the 

approval of the Hon. 

President 

√   

5. Other 

5.1 Reply to requests made under the 

Right to Information Act 

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

5.2 Matters related to Performance 

Agreements of Secretaries    

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

5.3 Act on Procurement Appeals 
                     

Perform as and when 

required 

√   

Parliamentary and Cabinet Affairs Division 

1. Parliamentary Affairs 

1.1 Coordinate the functions relevant to 

the Bills, Gazettes, Regulations, 

Annual Reports and documents that 

should be submitted by the Hon. 

President  

Implement 

expeditiously 

√   

1.2 Coordinate with the Ministers 

representing the ruling party in the 

Implement 

expeditiously 

√   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

Parliament 

1.3 Necessary coordination related to 

answers to the oral and non-oral 

parliamentary questions coming 

under the purview of the 

Presidential Secretariat   

The relevant 

answers should be 

sent to the Prime 

Minister's Office 

before 07 days. In 

the year 2023, 

08 oral questions 

have been answered 

by the due date. 

√   

2. Cabinet Affairs 

2.1 Prepare the briefing note including 

the observations and 

recommendations concerning 

cabinet memoranda relevant to the 

agenda of Cabinet of Ministers 

  

 

Briefing notes 

including 

observations and 

recommendations 

have been prepared 

for 48 meetings of 

Cabinet of Ministers 

√   

2.2 Refer the Cabinet Decisions that 

have been informed to be acted by 

the Secretary to the President to the 

relevant divisions for necessary 

action within the same week  

  

 

In the year 2023, 

191 Cabinet 

decisions have been 

referred to the 

relevant Divisions 

and follow-up action 

has been taken on 

the relevant 

decisions 

√   

2.3 Issue the numbers for the cabinet 

memoranda forwarded by the 

Presidential Secretariat and update 

the said database 

  

Numbers have been  

issued for 123 

Cabinet Memoranda 

and Notes to the 

Cabinet (26 Notes 

and 97 Memoranda) 

√   

2.4 Maintain a database containing the 

information of Cabinet Memoranda 

and information of Cabinet of 

2859 decisions 

relevant to the year 

have been entered 

√   



        Performance Report   2023    

Page 60 of 121 

 

Presidential Secretariat 

 

# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

Ministers into the database  

2.5 Coordinate the Cabinet Meetings 

and Sub-committee Meetings at the 

Presidential Secretariat and 

coordinate with the Office of the 

Cabinet of Ministers on behalf of 

the Presidential Secretariat  

  

 

49 Cabinet Meetings 

and 39 Sub-

Committee Meetings 

(20 Public 

Expenditure 

Management 

Committee meetings  

and 19 Cabinet Sub-

Committee Meetings 

on the issues faced 

by Sri Lanka 

Cricket) 

√   

3. Functions  pertaining to the appointment of Heads of Institutions and Members of 

the Board of Directors for Corporations, Boards and Statutory Institutions 

3.1 Functions pertaining to the 

appointment of Chairman/Heads of 

Institutions and Members of the 

Board of Directors of Government 

and Government Affiliated 

Institutions including all the 

Corporations, Boards and Statutory 

Institutions, other than the 

appointments that should be made 

by the Hon. President under the 

Constitution. 

Functions pertaining 

to the appointment 

of members of 250 

Institutions have 

been completed. 

√   

3.2 Inquire into the requests/ appeals 

and allegations concerning the 

appointment of heads of the 

institutions and members of the 

board of directors of the above 

mentioned institutions, and 

continue the future tasks    

Actions have been 

taken on 04 appeals 

and allegations 

√   

3.3 Maintain a database containing the 

information of Heads and Members 

of Board of Directors of Statutory 

Information of 250 

Institutions has been 

entered into the 

database and 

√   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

Institutions including Government 

Corporations and Boards and of 

250 Affiliated Institutions  

updated the same 

4. Other Duties 

4.1 Take appropriate action for various 

requests received by the 

Presidential Secretariat 

This task is 

performed by the 

Public Relations 

Division  

√   

4.2 Functions pertaining to the 

appointment of Chairpersons for the 

District and Divisional 

Development Committees 

Appointment of Hon. 

Governors as Co-

Chairmen of District 

Coordination 

Committees for the 

year 2023 as per the 

directions of the Hon. 

President. 

Appointment of Co-

Chairmen for 10 

Districts 

Chairpersons and Co-

Chairpersons of 

Divisional  

Development 

Committee have been 

appointed for 36 

Divisional 

Committees. 

√   

4.3 Organize and coordinate special 

meetings held with the Hon. 

President  

Organize and 

coordinate 15 

meetings of the 

ruling party MPs and 

2 All-Parties 

Conferences held 

under the patronage 

of the Hon. 

President.  

√   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

Human Resources Management, Administration and Transport Division 

1. Human Resources Management and Administration Division 

1.1 Manage organizational and 

administrative affairs 

Overtime Allowances/ Allotment of 

Government Quarters to Staff 

Officers/ Transport and Fuel 

Allowances of Staff Officers/ Asset 

Declaration Statements of Staff 

Officers/ Petty Cash Sub-Imprests 

and Ad-hoc Sub-Imprests/ Record 

Room/ Supervision of Telephone 

Exchange/ Supervision of Security 

and Cleaning Services 

An efficient work 

environment has 

been created 

Availability of a 

motivated and 

satisfied staff 

Information has 

been updated 

regularly and 

effectively 

Existence of an 

efficient 

communication 

network in the 

organization 

√   

1.2 Coordinate the provision, 

maintenance and development of 

infrastructure related to the 

Presidential Secretariat, President’s 

House and all buildings belonging 

to the Presidential Secretariat. 

i. Approve and direct the 

payments of recurrent 

expenditure (electricity/ 

water/ telephone and 

internet bills etc.) related to 

the provision of 

infrastructure in the 

President’s House, 

Presidential Secretariat and 

all the buildings belonging 

to the Secretariat. 

ii. Enter into Contractual 

Agreements on behalf of the 

Secretary to the President in 

An efficient work 

environment has 

been created. 

 

Availability of a 

motivated and 

satisfied staff. 

 

√   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

relation to the provision of 

public services, buildings 

rented, fixtures and 

maintenance of the 

Secretariat. 

1.3 Facilitate events organized by the 

Presidential Secretariat under the 

chairmanship/ directions of the 

Hon. President /the events 

organized for the Heads of Foreign 

States, Missions/ other special 

events 

 

Performed 

appropriately 

√   

1.4 Provide facilities to former 

Presidents in accordance with 

Presidents Entitlements Act No. 4 

of 1986, subject to the existing 

provisions 

Performed as per the 

existing Provisions 

√   

1.5 Launch pilot projects implemented 

by Productivity Promotion Unit 

ISO 9001:2015 

Quality Management 

Certification 

√   

2. Transport Division 

2.1 Provide transport facilities for the 

Hon. President, former Presidents 

and officers entitled to vehicles in 

the Presidential Secretariat, upon 

the requirement   

Percentage of 

vehicles in running 

condition 

 √  

2.2 Maintain vehicles in the pool of 

vehicles of the Presidential 

Secretariat 

Percentage of 

vehicles in the pool 

of vehicles in 

running condition 

  √ 

2.3 Guide for drivers to minimize road 

accidents and ensure compliance 

with Financial Regulations 

pertaining to road accidents 

Percentage of 

vehicle accident files 

finalized in 

accordance with the 

Financial 

Regulations 

  √ 
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

2.4 Manage the issuance of fuel with 

the aim of minimizing costs 

Percentage of 

reduction in fuel cost 

in this year 

compared to the 

previous year 

   

2.5 Conduct training programmes for 

capacity building of staff 

Number of 

programmes 

organized 

√   

Economic Affairs Division 

1 Follow up whether the Ministries, 

State Ministries and Institutions 

related to the economic affairs 

sector operate in line with the 

public policies. 

 Ministry of Finance, Economic 

Stabilization and National 

Policies 

 Ministry of Women, Child 

Affairs and Social 

Empowerment 

 Ministry of Health 

 Ministry of Tourism 

 

Number of decisions 

taken in the 

meetings/discussions 

held in this regard 

and decisions 

implemented 

accordingly 

√   

2 Inquire into the issues/ requests/ 

suggestions/ complaints referred to 

the Presidential Secretariat 

pertaining to the scopes of the 

Ministries and direct them to take 

appropriate action  

Number of issues for 

which action was 

taken out of the 

issues/ requests/ 

suggestions referred 

to the Secretariat 

√   

3 Perform activities related to the 

"Committee on establishment of 

a mechanism to analyze financial 

proposals related to foreign 

exchange and energy supply 

from various parties referred to 

the Presidential Secretariat, the 

Prime Minister's Office, the 

Number of proposals 

studied and 

forwarded for 

further action 

 

 

√   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

Ministries of Finance and 

Foreign Affairs 

 

4 Forward Cabinet papers related to 

the Division and follow up on the 

implementation of decisions 

concerned 

Number of Cabinet 

Papers drafted 

√   

5 Organize meetings of Secretaries to 

the Ministries and follow-up 

Number of meetings 

held 

√   

6 Perform activities pertaining to the 

“Cabinet Sub-Committee on 

Reconciliation” 

Number of meetings 

attended and 

interventions made 

√   

7 Establish the Interim Secretariat for 

Truth and Reconciliation 

Mechanism 

Number of meetings 

attended/conducted 

and number of 

interventions made 

√   

8 National Operations Room Number of projects 

discussed and 

submission of 

Recommendation 

Reports of Committee 

to the Cabinet of 

Ministers 

√   

9 Participate in the “Cabinet Sub-

Committee on Public Expenditure” 

on behalf of the Presidential 

Secretariat 

Number of meetings 

attended 

√   

11 Carry out relevant activities of the 

Committee of Senior Officials for 

the Establishment of an 

Independent Institution for 

Planning and Monitoring National 

Policies in relation to the Sub-

Committee appointed on 

Identifying Priorities in the 

Formulation of Short, Medium and 

Long-term National Policies. 

Number of 

discussions held and 

submission of the 

relevant committee 

report  

 

 

√   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

12 Coordinate functions related to the 

establishment of the Office for 

Overseas Sri Lankan Affairs 

Number of 

interventions made 

√   

13 The committee tasked with 

establishing Sri Lanka as a leading 

tourist destination 

Number of 

discussions held, 

submission of 

committee report 

and number of 

letters forwarded  

√   

14 Inter- Ministerial Tourism 

Committee 

 

Number of issues 

referred to the 

attention of the 

Committee to 

provide solutions 

√   

Number of meetings 

held and number of 

letters forwarded  

√   

15 Committee to Expedite the 

Preparation of the Nuwara Eliya 

Tourism Development Master Plan 

Submission of 

Committee Report 

  √ 

16 Nuwara Eliya District Tourism 

Management Committee 

Number of letters 

forwarded  

√   

17 Implementation of the Action Plan 

Improving Wildlife Tourism 

Experience in Yala National Park 

Number of records 

called for and 

number of letters 

forwarded  

√   

18 Committee on Formulation of the 

Ella Tourism Master Plan 

Calling for the 

Committee Report 

  √ 

19 Committee appointed to 

recommend suitable state hospitals 

for clinical training for medical 

students 

Number of letters 

forwarded  

number of 

discussions held, and 

Submission of 

Committee Report 

√   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

20 The Expert Committee appointed to 

provide guidance to the relevant 

parties to control the spread of 

Covid-19 and Dengue deseases in 

the country and arrive at necessary 

decisions expeditiously in that 

regard 

Submission of 

Committee Report 

 √  

21 Committee appointed to submit 

Recommendations for a National 

Policy with Standards and Criteria 

to be based for the recognition of 

Medical Degree Courses of 

Internationally Recognized 

Universities in Sri Lanka and 

amendments to the provisions of 

the Medical Ordinance to suit the 

present day needs 

Submission of 

Committee Report 

√   

22 Identify impediments to access 

high-quality pharmaceuticals and 

equipment at competitive prices, 

adopt simple and transparent 

procurement procedures and 

restructure the National Drug 

Regulatory Authority 

Appointment of the 

Committee and 

Submission of 

Committee Report 

  √ 

23 Establish a memorial dedicated to 

paying tribute to individuals who 

lost their lives due to armed 

conflict, political turmoil or civil 

unrest in Sri Lanka 

Appointment of  the 

Committee,  number 

of discussions held  

Number of Public 

Consultation 

Sessions held 

  √ 

 

24 
 

Committee of Officials to prepare 

Bill on study and act on Truth and 

Reconciliation Mechanism 

Number of 

discussions held and 

preparation of the 

Bill 

√   

 

25 
 

Committee to study and provide Number of letters √   
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# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

recommendations for the protection 

of children  

proceeded 

and number of 

discussions held 

Submission of 

Committee Report 

√   

26 Investment Facilitation Committee Appointment of the 

Committee 

√   

Strategic Affairs Division 

1. Trade and Investment 

1.1 Establishment and Monitoring of 

International Trade Office (ITO)  

1. Legal Framework 

for International 

Trade Office (Act) 

2. Organizational 

Structure and the 

Staff 

 

3.  TOR submitted 

through general 

operations and 

processes, and 

number of structured 

processes 

 

4. Number of Trade 

Agreements 

monitored 

 

5. Progress Report 

√   

1.2 Coordinate with and facilitate ITO 

to conduct stakeholder consultation 

sessions 

1. Sub-Committee on Trade in 

Goods 

2. Sub-Committee on Trade in 

Services 

3. Sub-Committee on Investments 

4. Sub-Committee on Rules of 

Origin 

Number of 

discussions and 

meetings organized 

during the quarter 

(as a percentage of 

the annual 

requirement) 

√   
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5. Sub-Committee on SPS 

6. Sub-Committee on Technical 

Barriers to Trade (6TBT). 

7. Sub-Committee on Customs 

Procedures and Trade 

Facilitation 

8. Sub-Committee on Trade 

Remedies 

9. Sub-Committee on Legal Affairs 

10. Sub-Committee on Economic 

Cooperation 

1.3 Ensure transmission of information 

to the community 

Number of Media 

briefings submitted 

and responses 

provided to letters 

received as a 

percentage of the 

annual requirement 

√   

1.4 Coordinate the negotiation and sign 

the proposed Free Trade 

Agreements 

 

 

 

 

 Signing of Free 

Trade Agreement 

with China 

 Signing of Free 

Trade Agreement 

with India 

 Signing of Free 

Trade Agreement 

with Bangladesh 

 Signing of Free 

Trade Agreement 

with Indonesia 

  

 
 

 

√ 

 

 

√ 

 

√ 

 

√ 

1.5 Sign the Free Trade Agreement 

with Thailand 

Free Trade 

Agreement 

implemented 

√   

1.6 Conduct research on trade to 

develop a road map for Sri Lanka, 

pertaining to the trade sector 

Number of 

researches 

conducted 

√   

2.  Food Policy Committee 

2.1 Coordinate all functions related to Number of meetings √   
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the Food Policy Committee, 

organize the relevant committee 

meetings, prepare reports and 

submit the reports of meetings to 

the Cabinet of Ministers 

organized 

Number of reports 

and 

recommendations 

submitted to the 

Cabinet of Ministers 

2.2 Compile reports, make 

observations, interventions and 

forecasts based on analytical data to 

ensure adequate availability of 

essential food and non-food items 

in the market at affordable prices 

and present such information to the 

Food Policy Committee 

Number of 

analytical reports 

submitted 

 

Number of 

forecasts/observations 

submitted to the Food 

Policy Committee 

√   

2.3 Inform the Institutions that should 

implement the decisions taken by 

the Food Policy Committee and 

follow up on the implementation of 

the decisions. 

Number of 

notifications issued 

for implementation 

of decisions, 

Number of follow-

up decisions 

√   

2.4 Organize meetings of Sub-

Committees established to 

implement the technical decisions 

taken at the Food Policy Committee 

meeting, prepare analytical reports 

to facilitate reaching decisions, 

prepare reports of meetings, and 

convey such decisions to the 

relevant parties. 

Number of meetings 

organized,  

Number of 

analytical reports 

submitted,  

Number of 

notifications to 

implement decisions 

√   

3. Foster a Business-Enabling Environment 

3.1 Strictly monitor eight (8) Task 

Forces for a Business-Enabling 

Environment 

Number of review 

meetings 

coordinated 

Number of follow-

up meetings 

coordinated (all 

stakeholders, donors, 

 √  
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etc.)  

3.1 Coordinate with the Indian 

Partnership and facilitate the 

relevant MoUs/ MoCs 

Coordination of 

stakeholder meetings 

Submission of Notes 

to the Cabinet/ 

Cabinet Memoranda 

Monitoring of the 

implementation of 

MoU/ MoC  

Conducting review 

meetings if required  

 √  

3.2 Coordinate with Donors (UN, WB, 

etc) 

Effective 

coordination of 

meetings with the 

Missions.  

Submission of 

relevant briefings 

/reports 

Coordination of 

follow-up meetings 

 √  

4.  National Education Policy Framework 

4.1 Coordinate the functions related to 

the Cabinet Sub-Committee 

appointed to prepare the National 

Education Policy Framework 

(NEPF) and the Expert Committee 

appointed by the Secretary to the 

President to assist the said 

Committe 

Approved National 

Education Policy 

Framework 

√   

4.2 Coordinate the functions related to 

the Oversight Committee appointed 

to monitor the implementation of 

the National Education Policy 

Framework (NEPF)  

 Coordinate with the Ministry of 

Education and other 

Priorities relevant to 

the year 2024 as 

contained in the 

National Education 

Policy Framework 

coordinated 

  √ 
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stakeholders through the Special 

Unit established in the 

Presidential Secretariat in order 

to provide technical assistance 

and coordination required to the 

Committee. thereby; 

- Coordinate curricula 

modernization at all levels of 

education (primary, 

secondary, higher educational 

and vocational)  

-  Coordinate administrative 

reforms at all levels of 

education (primary, 

secondary, higher educational 

and vocational) 

-  Coordinate with relevant 

stakeholders to implement the 

proposed Budget Estimates 

for the year 2024 

 

Eg:  English for All 

programme, 

Establishment of 

Provincial Vocational 

Education Boards  

 

5. Promote Fisheries Industry 

5.1 Appoint the committee for the 

promotion of the fisheries industry 

Coordinate 

stakeholder meetings 

 √  

5.2 Facilitate obtaining guidance from 

the relevant parties to make 

recommendations by the 

Committee appointed to propose 

strategic initiatives to enhance the 

promotion of fish exports in Sri 

Lanka. 

Coordinate meetings  √  
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6. Coordinate and Monitor Ministerial affairs 

6.1 Monitor and follow up whether the 

Ministries in charge of the subjects 

of education, industry, trade and 

fisheries and the Institutions under 

the puriview of said Ministries are 

operated in compliance with the 

public policies. 

Number of meetings 

held 

 

Number of decisions 

implemented 

  

Number of 

issues/requests/ 

proposals inquired 

and  referred to take 

appropriate action 

 

Number of progress 

reports studied and 

evaluations 

submitted 

√   

7. Planning Unit  

7.1 Prepare and Monitor the Annual 

Action Plan  
 The Annual Action 

Plan approved by the 

Secretary to the 

President  

 The Action Plan 

monitored on a 

quarterly basis.  

√   

7.2 Prepare Annual Performance 

Reports 

Draft submitted to 

the Auditor General 
 

Annual Performance 

Report submitted to 

the Parliament 

√   

7.3 Prepare the Annual Progress Report The Annual Progress 

Report submitted to 

the Parliament 

√   

Food Security and Infrastructure Project Development Division 

1. Food Security Unit 

1.1 Organize committee meetings 

under the chairmanship of the Hon. 

President/ under the chairmanship 

of Secretary to the President/ other 

committee meetings on the Multi-

Sector Combined Mechanism 

Frequency of 

meetings held 

Decisions 

implemented 

√   
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1.2 Establish a database for food 

security and collect data on food 

security (Information of 1,803,305 

families has been entered into the 

database -Food Gate App)    

Number of 

household units 

(Evaluation sheets) 

updated with data in 

the division 

 √  

1.3 Provide opportunities to exchange 

excess food produced in the area, at 

Food Exchange Centres in temples 

and other religious places 

Number of Food 

Exchange 

Centres/Banks 

actively operated 

√   

1.4 Necessary coordination and 

guidance for the effective 

implementation of projects related 

to the establishment of technical 

chilli farm plots covering half-acre 

land, selecting a minimum of  three 

youths from each division  

Number of agro-

technological farms 

established in the 

division. 

Number of young 

agri-entrepreneurs 

selected 

  √ 

1.5 Foster 100,000 new entrepreneurs 

having selected at least five persons 

from each division 

Number of 

Institutions directed 

for facilitation 

  √ 

1.6 Establish a technical telephone 

number in the Presidential 

Secretariat and introduce the said 

specific telephone line to the public 

Number of families 

who made requests  

Number of families 

referred for relief 

through the 

concerned 

Divisional 

Secretariat 

√   

1.7 Submit Cabinet papers pertaining to 

the subject areas of the Division as 

per instructions of the Hon. 

President, and implement and 

follow up the decisions concerned. 

Number of Cabinet 

Papers Submitted 

Number of decisions 

implemented, having 

necessary 

discussions with 

relevant stakeholders 

√   
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1.8 Formulate the National Strategic 

Plan for Fertilizer Utilization 

Number of meetings 

held with other 

stakeholders on 

timely supply of 

agricultural inputs to 

farmers 

Number of decisions 

implemented, having 

necessary 

discussions with 

Task Force members 

√   

1.9 National Food Security Strategic 

Action Plan 

Formulation of 

National Food 

Security Strategic 

Plan 

Number of meetings 

held with members of 

the Steering 

Committee 

 √  

1.10 Prepare National Food Security and 

Nutrition Act  

Number of meetings 

held with the 

relevant parties on 

drafting the Bill 

 √  

Agricultural Productivity and Land Division 

 Follow up and evaluate whether the Ministries tasked with oversight 

responsibilities for the Agricultural Productivity and Environment sector are 

executing their Vision and Mission. 

1.1 Coordinate and monitor the 

handling of requests and appeals 

pertaining to the Ministry of 

Wildlife and Forest Conservation, 

Ministry of Tourism and Lands, 

Ministry of Agriculture, Ministry of 

Irrigation, submitted by various 

individuals/organizations.  

Number of letters 

received, number of 

letters for which 

action was taken 

(referrals to relevant 

Institutions, reply 

letters and filing of 

copies etc.) 

√   

1.2 Remove the legal ban on the Number of issues √   
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exportation of Ebony timber resolved related to 

each Ministry through 

the intervention of the 

Presidential 

Secretariat 

1.3 Monitor and coordinate the 

tendering process of providing pine 

trees owned by the Department of 

Forest for the project of producing 

pine nut milk for exportation 

√   

1.4 Issuance of permits through the 

online system, to access to the 

National Parks 

√   

1.5 Form a methodology for the 

removal of pine trees planted by the 

Forest Department. 

√   

1.6 Committee to Facilitate and 

Oversee the Implementation of the 

National Action Plan for Reducing 

Human-Elephant Conflict 

 √  

1.7 Coordinate the development 

activities of the Yan Oya Project 

and solve the problems of the 

affected people. 

  √ 

1.8 Settlement of Land Issues through 

Sustainable Forest Management 

  √ 

1.9 Perform the initial steps of 

alienation of State Lands through 

the Divisional Secretaries 

  √ 

1.10 Pilot project to obtain information 

regarding the unutilized land 

through Geographical Information 

System (GIS). 

√   

2. Staff Grade Officers’ Contribution to the Committees appointed to perform 

special tasks assigned to Ministries 

2.1 Facilitate the Oversee the National 

Action Plan for Reducing Human-

Number of effective 

proposals submitted 
 √  
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Elephant Conflicts and comply with  

the decisions made by  the 

Oversight Committee 

by Committee 

members 

2.2 Prepare the concept paper related to 

the establishment of School of 

Governance 

√   

3. Perform special tasks assigned to this Division by the Hon. President/ Secretary 

to the President 

3.1 Coordinate the required 

arrangements for transporting 

elephant Muthuraja to Thailand for 

urgent medical treatment and care, at 

the special request of the Thai 

Embassy 

Number of specific 

tasks successfully 

completed 

√   

3.2 Take measures to develop and 

safeguard lakeshore protection 

systems 

  √ 

3.3 Revise the social security tax levied 

on the production and sale of rice 

√   

3.4 Develop a national policy 

framework to modernize the 

agriculture sector 

√   

3.5 Agriculture Sector Modernization 

Secretariat 

 √  

3.6 Implementation of Agriculture 

Sector Modernization Hub 

  √ 

3.7 Coordinate and monitor the low-cost 

rail transportation of vegetables and 

other materials project 

√   

3.8 Implement the pilot project for the 

'Community Kitchen' concept 

initiated based on the Hunupitiya 

√   
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Gangarama Temple 

3.9 Facilitate, coordinate and monitor 

the Sri Lanka Clean Energy 

Summit 2023 programme 

√   

3.10 Celebrate and host the Sinhala and 

Hindu New Year festival, Vesak 

festival and the annual Iftar 2023 

√   

3.11 Coordinate to conduct a meeting 

(Marks for the Centenary) under the 

National Youth Platform to obtain 

advisory support of a University 

Expert Committee to strategize the 

transformation of Kandy and 

Anuradhapura cities into tourist-

attractions 

√   

3.12 Initiate a process to grant 

compensations for the historic 

colonial crime committed by 

assassinating young Henry Pedris 

before 108 years by an unlawful 

judgment of the Colonial Court  

 

  √ 

3.13 Discussion regarding research and 

joint operations conducted by the 

NARA Institute 

√   

3.14 The acquisition of new land suitable 

for providing academic facilities to 

the students of the University of Fine 

Arts. 

 √  

3.15 Establish a National Land 

Commission 

 √  

3.16 Establish the State Lands Trust  √  

3.17 Progress related to the site   √ 
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inspections of the Hon. President 

Agency Coordination Division 

1  Coordinate functions of the 

implementation of the 

recommendations of the Final 

Report of the Commission of 

Inquiry to investigate and inquire 

into the various allegations and 

alleged corruption in Sri Lanka 

Customs. 

Successful 

completion of 

coordination within 

the stipulated time 

frame 

 √  

2 Coordinate functions of the 

establishment of the Institute for 

History 

 

Successful 

completion of 

coordination within 

the stipulated time 

frame 

 √  

3 Coordinate functions related to the 

establishment of a branch of 

General Sir John Kotelawala 

Defence University (KDU) in 

Kurunegala District 

Successful 

completion of 

coordination within 

the stipulated time 

frame 

  √ 

4 Coordinate tasks related to 

strengthening governance and 

developing a legal framework to 

combat corruption 

The bill has been 

passed in Parliament 

√   

5 Coordinate activities pertaining to 

the Public Service Commission, 

Election Commission, National 

Police Commission, Human Rights 

Commission of Sri Lanka, Bribery or 

Corruption Investigation 

Commission, Finance Commission, 

Delimitation Commission, Audit 

Service Commission, National 

Procurement Commission 

Successful 

completion of 

coordination within 

the stipulated time 

frame 

√   

6 Coordination related to the Ministry 

of Defence 

Successful 

completion of 

coordination within 

√   
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the stipulated time 

frame 

7 Coordination and administrative 

activities pertaining to the Office of 

the Auditor General, 

Administrative Appeals Tribunal, 

Office of the Parliamentary 

Commissioner for Administrative 

Affairs (Ombudsman)   

Successful 

completion of 

coordination within 

the stipulated time 

frame 

√   

8 Coordinations related to all 

religious requests such as offering 

credentials for the Most Ven. 

Mahanayake Theros and other 

requests from religious places 

Successful 

completion of 

coordination within 

the stipulated time 

frame 

√   

9 Study and review the draft of the 

Buddhist Temporalities Ordinance 

No.19 of 1931 and the Theravada 

Monk Discourse (Registration) Bill 

in order to make appropriate 

amendments to align with current 

circumstances. 

Successful 

completion of 

coordination within 

the stipulated time 

frame 

 √  

10 Conduct the 73
rd

 Upasampada 

Vinaya Karma festival of the Sri 

Lanka Ramanna Maha Nikaya 

Upasampada Vinaya 

Karma Festival for 

higher ordination 

(Upasampada) of two 

hundred Samanera 

(novice monks) was 

successfully held at 

the Sudu Ganga 

Udakukkhepa Seema 

Malakaya connected 

to the Mahaweli 

River and centred 

around the Purijjala 

Sri Sanghabodhi 

Pirivena in Matale 

√   

11 Conduct Esala Perahera in Kandy  The traditional 

ceremony to inform 

√   
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the Head of the State, 

Hon. President by 

Basnayaka Nilames 

on the successful 

completion of the 

historic festival of 

Esala, was 

successfully held. 

Information, Communication Technology and Digitization Division 

1 Maintain the Workshop at the 

SEMA building  

Number of tasks √   

2 Outsource the repairs of defective 

equipment deemed irreparable by the 

Workshop at the SEMA building. 

Number of units √   

3 Enter into Service Agreements for 

Photocopiers 

Number of units  √  

4 Enter into Service Agreements for 

ICT equipment other than 

Photocopiers  

Number of contracts   √ 

5 Update the Firewall system Technical 

recommendations 

√   

6 Obtain SSL Certificates for 

websites 

Number of units  √  

7 Purchase Domains for new 

websites and update the domains of 

existing websites 

Number of domain 

names 

  √ 

8 Procure the items required for 

networking telephone systems, 

PABX systems, internet and CCTV 

systems 

Number of tasks √   

9 Purchase a sound system to 

improve the quality of the sound 

control systems used for 

discussions in the Presidential 

Secretariat and maintenance 

Technical 

recommendations 

√   
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purpose of audio-visual systems in 

auditoriums 

10 Renewal of the Webex Online Video 

Conference system 

Renewal √   

11 Make payments for Netflix 

connections 

Number of payments  √  

   Northern Province Coordination Division   

1 Release of lands and grant land 

ownership to the entitled parties. 

Extent of land 

released 

  √ 

2 Number of investigations 

conducted by OMP and payment 

recommendations made to OR 

Number of 

investigations 

Number of persons 

recommended for 

compensation 

√   

3 Draft ONUR policy framework Draft of the Policy 

Framework 

√   

4 Cabinet Sub-Committee 

discussions 

Number of 

discussions and 

follow-ups 

√   

5 Discussions with stakeholders Number of 

discussions and 

follow-ups 

√   

6 Rapid Development Plan meetings 

(RDP- meetings) 

Number of 

discussions and 

follow-ups 

√   

7 DCC discussions Number of 

discussions  

√   

8 Discussions on Lands Number of 

discussions and 

follow-ups 

√   

Internal Audit Division 

1 Audit inquiries conducted on Audit 

areas identified, based on Risk 

Assessment of the Annual Internal 

Audit Plan 2023 

Number of Internal 

Audit Reports 

√   

2 Conduct Audit and Management 

Committee meetings as per 

Department of Management Audit 

Conduct 04 Audit 

and Management 

Committee meetings 

√   
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Circular No. DMA/01- 2019 

Community Affairs Division 

1 Identify community-based issues 

and provide 

coordination/intervention required 

to resolve such issues   

Number of 

community-based 

issues coordinated 

√   

2 Refer the prevailing issues raised 

by individuals, companies, and 

institutions to the concerned parties 

and direct them to provide 

solutions. 

Current issues 

solved by the 

relevant parties 

√   

3 Study the impact on the community 

in the implementation of Public 

Policies and develop appropriate 

strategies and implement such 

strategies through the relevant 

institutions 

Community-Based 

Progress Reviews 

conducted on 

Cabinet Decisions, 

Budget Proposals, 

Laws and  Bills 

√   

Accounts and Finance Division   

1 Pay the monthly salaries, 

allowances and emoluments for the 

officers on permanent, temporary, 

casual, contract and secondment 

basis  

 √   

2 Pay the over time and transport 

allowances to the officers  

 √   

3 Make the payments for services and 

supplies given for the Presidential 

Secretariat  

 √   

4 Prepare and submit the monthly 

accounts summary and bank 

reconciliation statement 

 √   

5 Prepare the annual financial 

statement and submit for auditing 

 √   

6 Prepare the annual budget and 

submit to the General Treasury  

 √   
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7 Perform the functions related to the 

Debate of the Committee Stage 

 √   

8 Reconcile the Office Accounts with 

Treasury Accounts 

 √   

9 Release of provisions for other 

Ministries and Departments 

 √   

10 Perform the functions relevant to 

the official foreign tours and 

foreign trainings of the officers. 

 √   

Legal Affairs Division 

1 Submit observation reports pertaining to the cases filed in 

the courts including the Supreme Court and the Court of 

Appeal, to the Attorney General. 

176 cases in the Supreme Court, 65 in the Court of Appeal, 

and 14 in the District Court are currently hearing. 

√   

2 Contribute to the preparation of new laws as directed by 

the Hon. President and the Secretary to the President 

√   

3 Under the Right to Information Act No. 12 of 2016;  

i. In accordance with the Right to Information Act and 

the relevant regulations, an Information Officer has 

been appointed for the Presidential Secretariat as the 

recognized authority while maintaining and updating 

a register in the Secretariat for providing information. 
 

ii. Provide information as per the instructions of the 

Secretary to the President to individuals/ parties who 

make requests. 

 

iii. Information on the Presidential Secretariat has been 

made accessible via its official website, allowing the 

public to express views and suggestions concerning 

the Secretariat's affairs. 

 

iv. In accordance with Section 10 of the Right to 

Information Act, the Presidential Secretariat as a 

public authority, has submitted annual reports to the 

Right to Information Commission before the due 

√   
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date. 

Participate in investigations conducted by the Right to 

Information Commission. 

4 Review and make recommendations for the drafted Lease 

agreements, Memorandums of Understanding and Sanitary 

Service Agreements pertaining to the building premises 

proposed to be leased by the Presidential Secretariat, as 

well as the drafts relevant to the agreements entered into by 

the Administrative Division and the Information and 

Communication Technology Unit (ICT) in respect of 

obtaining technical services. 

√   

Special Projects Division  

1 Coordinate the Presidential 

Secretariat with the Members of the 

Parliament of the Ruling Party, 

Hon. Governors, Members of 

Provincial Councils, Heads of the 

Local Government Authorities and 

Members, Party Organizers, 

members of Affiliated 

Organizations and representatives 

and members of Trade Unions 

Number of 

interventions 

performed, Number 

of tasks coordinated 

  

√   

2  Forward the requests, proposals 

and issues to the Hon. President 

and the concerned officials 

through the relevant parties 

Number of 

interventions 

performed, Number 

of solutions 

provided 

√   

3 Coordinate the tasks required to 

provide solutions to the requests, 

proposals and issues of the Ven. 

Theros 

Number of tasks 

coordinated 

√   

4 Coordinate with the relevant 

political authorities to effectively 

implement the ceremonies, 

meetings and discussions under the 

patronage of the Hon. President  

Number of 

ceremonies, 

meetings and 

discussions held 

√   
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5 Forward the instructions, directions 

and guidance provided by the Hon. 

President to the relevant political 

authority 

Number of 

instructions and 

directions provided  

√   

6 Investigate the public agitations and 

protests as per the orders/ directives 

received and prepare and forward  

the reports on such issues to the 

attention of the Hon. President. 

Number of reports 

submitted 

√   

President’s Media Division 

1 Organize the cultural evening 

successfully, celebrating 75
th

 

Independence Day at Independence 

Square on the night of 03
rd

 

February 2023 (with 750 artists) 

Celebrating the 

completion of 75 

years of 

independence of Sri 

Lanka in a grand 

manner 

√   

2 Conduct an all-night Pirith 

Chanting Ceremony to mark the 

75
th

 Independence Day on 2
nd

 

February (At the Victoria Dam) 

Invoke blessings on 

the citizens and the 

country on the 

occasion of 

celebrating 75
th

 

Independence Day 

of Sri Lanka 

√   

3 Publish the news and information 

on economic, social and political 

functions and future plans including 

national interests accomplished by 

the Hon. President, to the public in 

trilingual through the print and 

electronic media 

Prompt release of 

News in order to 

aware the public of 

the special occasions 

attended by the Hon. 

President and 

decisions made 

accordingly. 

√   

4 Address promptly the unresolved 

issues and grievances of the public 

that are highlighted in the mass 

media, bringing them to the attention 

of the relevant Departments  

 

Pay more attention to 

problems that need 

immediate solutions 

√   

5 Minimize the spread of false news Preventing √   
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and information through the already 

established Counter Disinformation 

Unit 

misinformation from 

spreading to the 

public 

6 Conduct the workshop for the 

Media Secretaries of Ministries 

successfully. 

Ensure an efficient 

service collaboration 

through a direct and 

strong relationship to 

disseminate true 

information  in the 

Society 

√   

7 Utilize social media platforms such 

as Facebook, YouTube, and the 

Web using the "PMD" account to 

promptly disseminate updates on 

the President's engagements 

towards the public 

Obtain prompt 

feedback via widely 

and immediately 

utilized public media 

platforms.  

√   

8 Capture photographs and videos of 

official functions and programmes 

participated by the Hon. President 

and release such information across 

print, electronic, and social media 

platforms. 

Increase the 

attractiveness of the 

relevant information 

on the programmes 

√   

9 Contribute to increase publicity 

regarding the development and 

social welfare programmes 

launched and to be launched by the 

Government 

Reveal of the 

Government's 

commitment to 

social welfare and 

the precision of its 

welfare initiatives 

√   

10 Collect information on government 

development and welfare projects 

through the Media Secretaries of 

Ministers and Information Officers 

of District Secretariats, Divisional 

Secretariats and accordingly 

disseminate such information 

Provide correct 

information to the 

public regarding the 

relevant tasks in the 

most appropriate 

manner 

√   

11 Prepare special messages 

(congratulatory and condolence 

messages) issued by the Hon. 

President and prepare feature 

Enhance diplomatic 

relationships  

maintained by the 

Hon. President, both 

√   
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articles for publication domestically and 

internationally. 

Improve domestic 

and foreign 

relationships kept by 

the Hon. President.  

Public Relations Division    

1 Address the grievances received in 

writing. (Normal and Registered 

Mail, Fax, Email) 

Take action within 

three days 

√   

2 Handle the grievances submitted by 

directly visiting the Public 

Relations Division 

Take action within 

one day 

√   

3 Provide opportunities for 

discussions as directed upon a 

request made to the Hon. President  

Take action within 

two /three weeks 

√   

4 Take action on complaints/ 

grievances received over the phone/ 

provide necessary instructions/ 

coordination 

Take action within a 

minimum time 

√   

5 Address common issues mentioned 

in print/electronic and social media 

Take action within a 

minimum time 

√   

6 Handle the requests received and 

forwarded to this Division by the 

Hon. President, the First Lady and 

Chief of Staff to the President 

Take action within 

three days 

√   

7 Address particular issues faced by 

social groups. (Employment/ 

professional, economic, social, 

religious, political issues) 

Call for reports 

/provide negotiation 

within two weeks 

from the receipt of 

requests 

  √   

8 Take action upon information 

received/reports published on 

violence against women and 

children 

Take action within 

three days  

√   
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9 Coordinate with NGOs in response 

to selected requests of persons with 

special needs/ school children/ 

university students 

Take action within 

one day 

√   

10 Coordinate with the responsible 

Departments in response to requests 

related to sudden social crises/ 

issues/ disasters 

Take prompt action 

as soon as an 

incident is reported 

√   

11 Organize mobile services and 

public discussions 

Organize two 

mobiles/discussions 

per month 

  √ 

12 Provide counselling services to 

individuals identified from among 

those who submit grievances. 

Daily √   

13 General Administration 

Routine Administration Affairs   

Implementation of Productivity 

Concept 

Welfare activities 

Progress reviews 

Daily  

 

Progress review within 

two weeks 

Monthly 

Monthly 

√   

Presidential Trade Union Relations Division 

1 Engage in media programmes on 

behalf of the Government in a well 

organized manner 

Participation in the 

programmes held for 

the year 

√   

2 Conduct conferences across the 

island to raise awareness among 

Civil Organizations, Trade Unions, 

Politicians and Government 

Officials regarding the Budget 

2024. 

Conferences have 

been held covering 

Western, Central, 

North Central and 

Sabaragamuwa 

Provinces. 

√   

Ombudsman - Presidential Secretariat 

1 Ensure providing timely and 

equitable solution to all public 

complaints received by the 

Ombudsman of the Presidential 

Secretariat through mail, email, fax, 

Proceed within three 

days 

√   



        Performance Report   2023    

Page 90 of 121 

 

Presidential Secretariat 

 

# Activity/ Item 
Performance 

Indicator 

Actual Output (%) 
(as a percentage of the 

expected outcome) 

100-90 89-75 74-50 

or in person, securing swift and fair 

outcomes 

2 Coordinate with the relevant 

institutions to address public 

concerns as informed by visiting 

the Office of the Ombudsman and 

provide possible relief and proceed 

with such matters/provide 

appropriate instructions to obtain 

relief. 

Proceed within the 

same day 

√   

3 Take prompt action on the 

complaints and grievances received 

and communicated to this office by 

the public to the Hon. 

President/Chief of Staff to the 

President, Secretary to the President 

Take further action 

within three days 

√   

4 Pay special attention to complaints 

related to violence against women 

in coordination with the Police 

Children and Women Bureau 

 Proceed within 

three days  

√   

5 Coordinate with the Pension 

Department to address complaints 

or grievances related to long-

standing pension matters, salary 

disparities, and similar issues. 

Take action within a 

week (This task may 

require additional 

time due to the 

requirement of 

reviewing past files, 

circulars, and 

instructions) 

√   

6 Provide appropriate instructions to 

the relevant Police Stations 

regarding the conduct of raids in 

relation to complaints received 

pertaining to drug trafficking. 

Take action within 

three days 

√   

7 Pay special attention to addressing 

complaints related to environmental 

issues and collaborate with relevant 

institutions to ensure justice for the 

Take further action 

within three days 

√   
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individuals who raised these 

concerns 

8 Deploy the two police officers 

assigned to this Division to 

investigate specific complaints that 

require attention among such 

complaints received by the division. 

Take further action 

within three days 

√   

President's Fund 

1 Medical assistance for various 

diseases 

Number of patients √   

2 Poverty alleviation programme to 

improve livelihood of people 

Number of families In 2023, the volume of 

public requests pertaining 

to this matter was 

comparatively low. Upon 

approval granted, a total 

of Rs. 870,000.00 has 

been paid in respect of 

the selected cases from 

the total requests. 

3 Mahapola Higher Education 

Scholarship Fund 

Percentage (%) of 

amount granted 

√   

4 Award scholarships for the students 

who have passed at the G.C.E. 

(A/L) examination.             

[An amount of Rs.3,150,000.00 has 

been paid to provide  financial 

assistance for  90 students]       

Number of students √   

5 Provide scholarships to the students 

in low-income families who have 

passed G.C.E.(O/L) examinationand 

studying for G.C.E (A/L) 

examination.  

[Payment of Rs. 5000/- each has 

been made for 3000 children, for 10 

months from April 2023 to January 

2024 ] The remaining installments 

are scheduled to be paid until the 

Number of students √   
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Advanced Level examination is 

conducted within the next two years 

and the financial assistance to be 

given in this concern is Rs 6000/- 

(In next year, arrangements have 

been made to select applicants from 

100 zones; 50 students each from 

one zone.) 

6 Grant for reconstructions/ 

renovations and construction of 

religious places. 

Number of Religious 

Institutions 

   

7 Provide financial assistance for 

processions and other cultural 

activities organized annually. 

Number of 

Processions and 

other cultural 

activities 

   

8 Accounts maintained in State 

Banks and Department of Public 

Trustee in the name of the 

President's Fund, in providing 

benefit for individuals 

Number of persons √   

9 Benefits granted at the discretion of 

the Hon. President and the Board 

Number of persons    

Policy Implementation and Monitoring Division 

1. Ministry of Sports and Youth Affairs 

1.1 Coordinate, monitor and refer 

requests, matters and appeals 

concerning the Ministry of Sports 

submitted by various institutions 

and individuals, to the relevant 

Institutions. 

Actions have been 

taken in response to 

the letters received 

√   

1.2 Implement the proposal approved 

by the Cabinet of Ministers on 

01.09.2023, to establish the 

University of Sports under the 

establishment of new Institutions in 

order to transform Sri Lanka into a 

developed country in the world by 

the next 25 years (2048). 

Preparation of the 

Draft 

  √ 
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1.3 Amend the prevailing Sports Act 

No. 25 of 1973 

Preparation of the 

Bill 

 √  

1.4 Introduce 75 young Agro-

entrepreneurs concurrently with the 

75
th 

Independence celebrations 

Identification of 

Agro-entrepreneurs 

 √  

2. Ministry of Mass Media 

2.1 Formulate the policy for the 

issuance of postage and revenue 

stamps 

Preparation of Draft 

Policy 

 √  

2.2 

 

Coordinate, monitor and refer the 

requests letters and appeals 

concerning the Ministry of Mass 

Media submitted by various 

persons/organizations to the 

relevant Institutions. 

Actions have been 

taken in response to 

the letters received 

√   

2.3 Coordinate, monitor and refer the 

request letters and appeals 

concerning the Ministry of Public 

Administration, Home Affairs, 

Provincial Councils and Local 

Government submitted by various 

persons/organizations to the 

relevant institutions. 

Actions have been 

taken on the letters 

received 

√   

2.4 

 

Establish the School of Governance 

(Coordination and supervision of the 

duties related to the establishment of 

the University as per the approval 

granted at the meeting of the Cabinet 

of Ministers held on 9
th

 January 2023 

to establish new institutions under 

the programme to transform Sri 

Lanka into a developed country in 

the world by the year 2048.) 

Number of letters 

forwarded and 

number of 

discussions held 

  √ 

3. Ministry of Environment 

3.1 Coordinate, monitor and refer the 

requests letters and appeals 

concerning the Ministry of 

Number of letters 

received and 

proceeded 

√   
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Environment submitted by various 

persons/organizations, to the 

relevant Institutions. 

3.2 Oversee the establishment of a 

Climate Justice Forum the 

vulnerable and developing 

countries to accelerate global 

climate action. 

Actions have been 

taken on the letters 

received. 
 

Appoint a 

Committee. 

 √  

3.4 Appoint an Advisory Committee 

for the implementation of the 

International Climate Change 

University. 

Appoint a 

Committee  

Conduct Committee 

discussions 

Prepare Meeting 

Minutes 

Prepare Terms of 

Reference (ToR)  

  √ 

3.5 Monitor the drafting of the policy 

related to Living Entities in Sri 

Lanka. 

Appoint a Committee  

Conduct Committee 

discussions  

Prepare Meeting 

Minutes 

Draft the Policy 

 √  

3.6 Oversee the activities related to 

drafting a new National 

Environment Act by amending the 

Environment Act No. 47 of 1980 

and obtaining approval for the 

same. 

Appointment of a 

Committee to draft 

the Act. (by Ministry 

of Environment)  

Meetings conducted 

 √  

3.7 Establish the Climate Change 

Secretariat under the Presidential 

Secretariat as approved by the 

Cabinet of Ministers on 09.01.2023, 

in order to transform Sri Lanka into a 

developed country in the world by 

Establishment of 

Climate Change 

Secretariat. 

√   
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the next 25 years (2048). 

3.8 Prepare Guidelines for 

implementation of the concept of 

Urban Forest. 

Draft the Guideline  √  

4. Project Monitoring 

4.1 Monitor the Projects over Rs. 1000 

million in collaboration with the 

Department of Project Management 

and Monitoring. 

Prepare the 

Committee Report 

 √  

4.2 Duties related to the Parliamentary 

Committee on Rapid Rural 

Development 

Parliamentary 

Committee Report 

√   

4.3 Monitor the Data Localization 

Project  

Prepare and submit 

the Concept Paper to 

the High-Level 

Committee on Digital 

Incorporation with 

Digitalization 

Strategy for 

implementation 

√   

4.4 Submit the monthly progress 

reports of the Growth Acceleration 

Programme  

Monthly progress 

report submitted to 

the Secretary to the 

President 

√   

4.5 Review the progress of the 

Divisions of the Presidential 

Secretariat 

Monthly progress 

report submitted to 

the Secretary to the 

President 

√   

4.6 Coordinate and monitor 

Decentralized Budget Allocations 

2024 

Issuance of the 

relevant circular 

√   

4.7 Handle international relations under 

the guidance of the Secretary to the 

President 

Number of 

programmes 

finalized 

√   
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Performance of achieving Sustainable Development Goals 

  

 

 

# Goals/ 

Objectives 
Targets Achievement index 

Progress of the 

achievement to date 

% 

0-49 50-74 75-100 

1 

Eradicatio

n of all 

forms of 

poverty 

everywher

e 

President's Fund  

To provide main 

under a proper 

system for public 

requests  

Amount of money 

given % 
√   

Northern Province 

Coordination 

Division  

Transfer of land held 

by the Government to 

regular owners 

 

 √  

 2 

End 

hunger, 

achieve 

food 

security 

and good 

nutrition 

and 

promote 

sustainabl

e 

agriculture

. 

Food Safety 

Division  

Establishment of 

food safety data 

system and 

collection of food 

safety data 

The number of data 

household units 

(maps) updated in 

the domain 

    √ 

Preparation of 

national strategic 

plan for fertilizer 

use 

Number of meetings 

held with other 

stakeholders to 

ensure timely supply 

of agricultural 

inputs to farmers 

Number of decisions 

implemented after 

necessary 

discussions with 

task force members 

  √ 
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% 

0-49 50-74 75-100 

  

National Food 

Security Strategic 

and Action Plan 

Formulation of 

National Food 

Security Strategic 

Plan 

Number of meetings 

held with members 

of the steering 

committee 

  √ 

3 

Ensuring 

healthy 

living and 

promoting 

well-being 

for all 

people of 

all ages 

Economic Affairs 

Division 

Identify barriers to 

access to quality 

drugs and 

equipment at 

competitive prices, 

adopt simple and 

transparent 

procurement 

procedures and 

restructure the 

National Drug 

Regulatory 

Authority 

Appointment of 

Committee  

 

Submission of 

Committee Reports 

 

 

 

 

√ 

√ 

Public Relations 

Division 

Public Grievance 

Management 

  

 

 

√ 

  

Psychiatry Unit  

Provide 

psychological 

counseling / refer 

them to local 

psychiatry and refer 

 

 

 

√ 
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achievement to date 

% 

0-49 50-74 75-100 

them to formal 

psychiatric 

treatment for 

people who need 

treatment. 

 4 

Ensuring 

universally 

equitable 

quality 

education 

for all and 

lifelong 

learning 

opportunit

ies for all 

Strategic Affairs 

Division  

Coordinating the 

work of the 

Monitoring 

Committee 

appointed by the 

Cabinet to prepare 

and implement the 

National Education 

Policy Framework 

 

    √ 

Economic Affairs 

Division 

To prepare a 

national policy that 

includes the 

standards and 

determination to be 

based on the 

acceptance of 

medical degree 

courses in 

internationally 

recognized 

universities in Sri 

Lanka and to make 

appropriate 

recommendations 

for revising the 

 

  √ 
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achievement to date 

% 

0-49 50-74 75-100 

provisions of the 

Medical Ordinance 

to suit the current 

needs. 

President's Fund  

Grant of educational 

scholarships 

Number of students 

receiving bursary 
  √ 

  

Mahapola Bursary 

Fund 

Amount of money 

given for bursary 

funds 

  √ 

5 

Achieving 

gender 

equality 

and 

empoweri

ng all 

women 

and girls 

Carrying out 

activities related to 

the committee to 

study the safety of 

children and make 

recommendations  

Preparation of 

National Action Plan 

2023-2027 on 

Women, Peace and 

Security (Economic 

Affairs Division) 

Number of 

discussions held  

Number of articles 

referred  

Submission of 

Committee Report  

Number of meetings 

attended 

    √ 

 7 

Ensuring 

affordable, 

reliable, 

sustainabl

e and 

modern 

energy 

supply for 

all.  

Economic Affairs 

Division 

Coordinating the 

related activities of 

the committee to 

establish a 

mechanism for 

analyzing financial 

proposals related to 

 

  
 

 √ 
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Targets Achievement index 

Progress of the 

achievement to date 

% 

0-49 50-74 75-100 

foreign exchange 

and energy supply. 

10 

Reducing 

inequality 

within and 

between 

countries 

Acting on 

International 

ConventionsInternat

ional Covenant on 

Civil and Political 

Rights 

 Universal 

periodic review 

Preparation of 

reports for the 

Government of Sri 

Lanka 
   √ 

 13 

Rapid 

action 

against 

climate 

change 

and its 

impacts. 

PIMD 

Overseeing the 

establishment of a 

Climate Justice 

Forum of like-

minded developing 

and climate-

vulnerable countries 

to accelerate global 

climate action 

Acting on letters 

received 

  √    

PIMD 

Appointing an 

advisory committee 

to implement the 

International 

Climate Change 

University 

Appointing a 

committee, 

conducting 

committee 

discussions, 

preparing discussion 

notes, (TOR) 

preparing User 

  √  
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Targets Achievement index 

Progress of the 

achievement to date 

% 

0-49 50-74 75-100 

Matters 

PIMD 

Establishment of 

Climate Change 

Secretariat attached 

to the Office of the 

President 

Establishment of 

Climate Change 

Secretariat 
 √   

16 Creating 

peaceful and 

perfect 

societies for 

sustainable 

development

, providing 

opportunitie

s for justice 

to all and 

building 

perfect 

institutions 

with 

effective 

responsibilit

ies at all 

levels. 

Economic Affairs 

Division 

Open Government 

Partnership (2023-

2025) Third 

National Action Plan 

Number of 

discussions held and 

number of actions 

taken   

80% 

 

Northern Province 

Coordination 

Division  

Expediting the OMP 

investigation 

process and 

recommending 

payments to the OR 

Number of 

investigations 

carried out  

Number of persons 

recommended for 

payment  

Number of 

payments made 

 60% 

 

Northern Province 

Coordination 

Division  

Implementation of 

the proposed 

National Integration 

and Reconciliation 

Number of programs 

executed 

Assessing the impact 

on community 

cohesion, trust and 

mutual support 

  75% 
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Progress of the 

achievement to date 

% 

0-49 50-74 75-100 

Programme 

PIMD 

Conducting work 

related to the 

committee 

consisting of 

officials to prepare 

the bill on the study 

and operation of the 

Truth-seeking and 

Reconciliation 

Mechanism.   

Number of 

discussions held and 

number of actions 

taken 

  100% 

Community Affairs 

Division 

To maintain updated 

data (real time data) 

of all government 

agencies and to 

coordinate all 

government and 

statutory agencies to 

prepare a system for 

quick access to that 

data "National 

Resource Profile 

Project". 

Establishing a 

provincial council 

affairs coordination 

unit 

 

  80% 
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# Goals/ 

Objectives 
Targets Achievement index 

Progress of the 

achievement to date 

% 

0-49 50-74 75-100 

  

PIMD 

Data Localization 

Project monitoring 

To prepare and 

implement the 

concept papers to 

the High Level 

Committee on 

Digital 

Incorporation with 

Digitalization 

Strategy 

  100% 

17 

Strengthen 

implementat

ion 

mechanisms 

and 

revitalize 

global 

partnerships 

for 

sustainable 

development 

Coordinate the 

negotiation and 

signing of Free 

Trade Agreements 

(CSLFTA, SLTFTA,  

ETCA) to conduct 

these rounds of 

negotiations in 

coordination with 

the International 

Trade Office 

Number of rounds of 

discussion 
 √   
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Human Resource Profile 

  

 

  

 

6.1 Workforce Management  

Appointees of the Office of the President serving as on 31.12.2023 

level 
Permanent/ All 

Island/ 
Combined 

Attached Contract 
Temporar

y 
Total 

Senior 90 39 8 131 268 

Tertiary  19 3 4 19 45 

Secondary 394 31 4 93 522 

Primary 270 30 13 61 374 

Total 773 103 29 304 1209 

 

6.2 How the shortage or surplus of human resources has affected 

performance   

  

As the work and tasks change according to the vision and mission of the President-elect, 

the presidential staff will be dealt with in such a way that there are no vacancies or 

redundancy. 

 

6.3 Human Resource Development  
 

In order to maintain the efficiency and systematicity of the functions of the President's 

Office, performance through the inherent scopes of the President's Office by 

contributing the knowledge gained in the fields of productivity, procurement, 

information technology and language proficiency and knowledge related to innovative 

concept operations in the fields of economy, energy, construction and tourism 

internationally. Raising 
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Domestic and foreign training courses from 01.01.2023 to 31.12.2023 

# Name of the program 

Numbe
r of 

emplo
yees 

traine
d 

Officers 
targeted 

Course 
duration 

Total investment 
Nature 
of 
Progra
m 
(Local/F
oreign) 

Outp
ut/kn
owle
dge 

gaine
d 

local 
foreig
n 

1 Training Programme 
on Economics of 
Development, Admin 
and Impactful Growth 
Strategies 

1 

Executive  16, 17, 23, 24 
and 04 April 
2023 

There is no fee 
for 
government 
officials. 

- 

local  

Profes
sional 
knowl
edge, 
abiliti
es and 
skills 
in 
releva
nt 
fields 

2 Productivity and 
Quality Management 
Certificate Course 

40 

Tertiary 
and 
Secondary 

09 days Resource 
allowances 
only (Rs. 
16,800/=) 

- 

local  

3 Discipline and office 
etiquette for drivers 
and office assistants 

1 
Primary  2023.05.25 සහ 

26 
Rs:. 9,500/= 

- 
local  

4 Rejuvenation of 
Entrepreneurship 
Development Program 
for Senior Citizens 

12 

Tertiary, 
Secondary 
and 
Primary 

2023.06.13 There is no 
charge. 

- 

local  

5 Efficiency Bar Exam 
Exemption Training 
Course for Class I 
Officers in 
Management Service 
Officer Service  

7 

Secondary 10 days There is no 
charge. 

- 

local  

6 Training Workshop on 
ISO 9001-2015 Quality 
Management Standard 
Certification 

2 

Secondary 2023.03.14 - 15 Rs:. 
36,384.58/= 

- 

local  

7 Diploma Course in 
Productivity 1 

Executive  A period of one 
year from April 
2023 

Rs. 72,000/= 
- 

local  

8 Library Conservation 
Certificate Course 

1 Tertiary 
From July 2023 
to 3 months 

Rs. 20,000/= - 
local  

9 HND in Public 
Procurement and 
Contract 
Administration 

4 

executive 
(3) 
Secondary 
(1) 

September 
2023 to 
November 
2024 

Rs. 552,000/= - 

local  

10 ICT Workshop - file 
management in 
windows, cloud 
services 

20 

Executive, 
Tertiary 
and 
Secondary 

2023.06.28 
There is no 
charge. 

- 

local  

11 Tamil Language 
Course - 100 hrs 

41 Primary 
2022.12.17 - 
2023.04.01 

Rs|:75,000/= - 
local  

12 Tamil language course 
- 150 hrs 

54 Secondary 
2023.05.27 - 
2023.12.02 

Rs:. 112,500/= - 
local  

13 
Diploma in 
Professional English 

9 

executive 
(1) 
Secondary 
(8) 

Scheduled to 
start in 2024 

The total fee is 
Rs. 1,040,000/= 

and in the year 
2023 Rs. 
395,815/= has 
been paid. 

- 

local  

14 
Certificate in English 
for careers 

2 
Tertiary (1) 
Secondary 
(1) 

- 

15 
Speechcraft Training 
with Toastmasters 
International 

4 

executive 
(3) 
Secondary 
(1) 

- 

16 Diploma in Diplomacy 
& World Affairs Course 

3 Executive  15 months Rs:. 510,000/= - 
local  
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# Name of the program 

Numbe
r of 

emplo
yees 

traine
d 

Officers 
targeted 

Course 
duration 

Total investment 
Nature 
of 
Progra
m 
(Local/F
oreign) 

Outp
ut/kn
owle
dge 

gaine
d 

local 
foreig
n 

17 Cyber Security 
Capacity building 
Program 

2 
Executive 
 

August 10 
There is no 
charge. 

- 
local  

18 Workshop on 
Development of 
information and Cyber 
Security Competency 
Framework for 
Government Officials 

1 Executive  August 21, 22 
There is no 
charge. 

- 

local  

19 

General Conduct and 
Disciplinary Procedure 
in Public Service 

7 

executive 
(1) 
Tertiary 
(6) 

2023.10.30 - 
2023.11.03 (for 
4 officers) 
 
It will be held 
in future for the 
other group 

There is no 
charge. 

- 

local  

20 Diploma in Public 
Procurement and 
Contract 
Administration 

1 

Executive 
One year from 
15.10.2023 

Rs. 60,000/= - 

local  

21 Workshop on Law for 
Public Servants 

1 Executive 2023.11.27 - 
2023.12.01 

There is no 
charge. 

- 
local  

22 
Diploma in Public 
Procurement and 
Contract 
Administration 

3 

Executive 
(1) 

Secondary 
(2) 

One year from 
15.10.2023 

Rs. 60,000/= at 
personal 
expense of 
officers 

- 

local  

23 Cyber Security 
Capacity building 
Program 

6 Secondary 2023.12.12 
There is no 
charge. 

- 
local  

24 Mu.Re. Damage 
Inspection Workshop 
under 104 

1 
Executive 

2023.11.28 Rs. 5,000/= - 
local  

25 Strategic HRM for 
Organizational 
Excellence (ITEC)  

1 
Executive 09.01.2023 – 

15.01.2023 
- 

Training 
programs 
provided 
by ERD 

foreign 

Internati
onal 
professio
nal 
knowled
ge, 
abilities 
and 
skills in 
relevant 
fields 

26 International Training 
Programme on Public 
Policy and Governance 
(ITEC) 

1 

Executive 
22.03.2023 – 
18.04.2023 

- 

foreign 

27 Technical Training 
Workshop on Seasonal 
Livelihood 
Programming (SLP) 

1 

Executive 
03.03.2023 – 
15.03.2023 

- 

foreign 

28 Seminar on China's Aid 
Projects Management 
System for Developing 
Countries 

1 

Executive 
04.04.2023 - 
18.04.2023 

- 

foreign 

29 Seminar on Poverty 
Alleviation and 
Sustainable 
Development for B&R 
Countries 

1 

Executive 

04.04.2023 - 
17.04.2023 

- 

foreign 

30 Seminar on 
Implementing 2030 
Agenda for Sustainable 
Development for 
Developing Countries 

1 

Executive 

04.04.2023 - 
17.04.2023 

- 

foreign 
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# Name of the program 

Numbe
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emplo
yees 

traine
d 

Officers 
targeted 

Course 
duration 

Total investment 
Nature 
of 
Progra
m 
(Local/F
oreign) 

Outp
ut/kn
owle
dge 

gaine
d 

local 
foreig
n 

Poverty Alleviation  

31 Seminar on China Aid 
Projects for 
Developing Countries 

1 
Executive 04.04.2023 - 

17.04.2023 
- 

foreign 

32 Seminar on 
Implementing 2030 
Agenda for Sustainable 
Development for 
Developing Countries - 
Women and Children 

1 

Executive 

22.04.2023 - 
05.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

33 Seminar on 
Implementing 2030 
Agenda for Sustainable 
Development for 
Developing Countries - 
Sustainable Cities and 
Towns 

1 

Executive 

22.04.2023 - 
05.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

34 Seminar on 
Implementing 2030 
Agenda for Sustainable 
Development for 
Developing Countries - 
Global Partnership 

1 

Executive 

24.04.2023 - 
07.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

35 Seminar on Trade 
Rules for Senior 
Officials of Developing 
Countries 

1 

Executive 
24.04.2023 - 
07.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

36 Seminar on Ethnic 
Policy and Practices 
for Developing 
Countries 

1 

Executive 
09.05.2023 - 
22.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

37 Seminar on Tax 
Collection and 
Management for B&R 
Countries 

1 

Executive 
09.05.2023 - 
22.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

38 Seminar on Innovative 
Development of 
Cultutral Trade for 
Developing Counties 

1 

Executive 
16.05.2023 - 
29.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

39 Seminar on Public 
Cultural Service 
Reform and Health 
Development for 
Developing Countries 

1 

Executive 

16.05.2023 - 
29.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

40 Seminar on 
Negotiation Capacity 
Building of Free Trade 
Agreement for Sri 
Lanka  

1 

Executive 

17.05.2023 - 
30.05.2023 

- 

foreign 

41 Seminar on Digital 
Transformation of 
Infrastructure 
Development, 
Operation and 
maintenance for B&R 
Countries 

1 

Executive 

17.05.2023 - 
30.05.2023 

- 

foreign 



        Performance Report   2023    

Page 108 of 121 

 

Presidential Secretariat 

 

# Name of the program 

Numbe
r of 
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yees 

traine
d 

Officers 
targeted 

Course 
duration 

Total investment 
Nature 
of 
Progra
m 
(Local/F
oreign) 
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ut/kn
owle
dge 

gaine
d 

local 
foreig
n 

42 Seminar on the 
Relevance of China's 
Reform, Opening up 
and Development 
Practices for B&R 
Countries 

1 

Executive  
24.05.2023 - 
06.06.2023 
 
 

- 

foreign 

43 Seminar on 
Formulating Medium 
and Long-term 
Development Plans for 
B&R Countries 

1 

Executive 

24.05.2023 - 
06.06.2023 

- 

foreign 

44 Seminar on Public 
Safety Science and 
Technology for B&R 
Countries 

1 

Executive 
24.05.2023 - 
06.06.2023 

- 

foreign 

45 Seminar on Digital 
Economy and Industry 
Integration under the 
Global Development 
Initiative 

1 

Executive 

04.06.2023 - 
17.06.2023 

- 

foreign 

46 Seminar on Building 
Digital Government for 
Developing Countries 

1 
Executive 05.06.2023 - 

18.06.2023 
- 

foreign 

47 Seminar on Digital 
Agriculture and Rural 
Development, Poverty 
Reduction and Rural 
Revitalization 
Practices for B&R 
Countries 

1 

Executive 

07.06.2023 - 
17.06.2023 

- 

foreign 

48 Seminar on 
Construction and 
Operation 
Management of Rail 
Transporation 

1 

Executive 

08.06.2023 - 
21.06.2023 

- 

foreign 

49 Seminar on VAT 
Management and 
Reform for Belt and 
Road Countries  

1 

Executive  
14.06.2023 - 
27.06.2023 

- 

foreign 

50 Seminar on 
Enviornmental 
Protection and 
Sustainable 
Development for 
Developing Countries 

1 

Executive 

15.06.2023 - 
05.07.2023 

- 

foreign 

51 Seminar on Low 
Carbon Development, 
Energy Saving and 
Emission Reduction 
for Developing 
Countries 

1 

Executive 

27.06.2023 - 
10.07.2023 

- 

foreign 

52 Seminar on the 
Construction and 
Management of 
Development Areas 

1 

Executive 
28.06.2023 - 
18.07.2023 

- 

foreign 

53 Seminar on 
Information and 
Communication 
Development for 

1 

Executive 
28.06.2023 - 
18.07.2023 

- 

foreign 
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traine
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of 
Progra
m 
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ut/kn
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dge 
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d 

local 
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n 

Countries along the 
Belt and Road 

54 Seminar on 
Distribution and Trade 
of Agricultural 
Products for Belt and 
Road Countries 

1 

Executive 

29.06.2023 - 
19.07.2023 

- 

foreign 

55 Seminar on 
Ecotourism 
Development and 
Management for 
Develoing Countries 

1 

Executive 

04.07.2023 - 
24.07.2023 

- 

foreign 

56 Seminar on Promotion 
for Development of 
Clean Energy Industry 
for Chambers of 
Commerce and 
Industry of B&R 
Countries  

1 

Executive 

07.07.2023 - 
20.07.2023 

- 

foreign 

57 Seminar on 
Government 
Effectiveness and 
Efficiency for 
Developing Countries 

1 

Executive 

10.07.2023 - 
23.07.2023 

- 

foreign 

58 Seminar on Female 
Capacity Building for 
Developing Countries 

1 
Executive 14.07.2023 - 

27.07.2023 
- 

foreign 

59 Seminar on Chinese 
Language & Culture for 
Diplomatic Officials 
from Developing 
Countries 

1 

Executive 

26.07.2023 - 
08.08.2023 

- 

foreign 

60 Seminar on China's 
Experience in 
Sustinable Social 
Development and 
Poverty Reduction for 
Developping Countries 

6 

Executive – 
01 
Non-
Executive- 
01 

26.07.2023 - 
16.08.2023 

- 

foreign 

61 Seminar on Tourism 
Management for Sri 
Lanka 

1 Executive  
22.08.2023 - 
04.09.2023 

- 
foreign 

62 
Seminar on PPP Model 
Development and 
Management in 
Developing Countries 

2 

Executive – 
01 
Non-
Executive- 
01 

11.08.2023 - 
31.08.2023 

- 

foreign 

63 Seminar on News 
Media of Developing 
Countries 

2 
Executive 16.08.2023 - 

29.08.2023 
- 

foreign 

64 Seminar on China's 
Green Development 
Practices (AIBO) 

2 
Executive 22.08.2023 - 

04.09.2023 
- 

foreign 

65 Seminar on Tourism 
Promotion for 
Developing Countries 

1 
Executive 22.08.2023 - 

11.09.2023 
- 

foreign 

66 Seminar on Small and 
Medium-sized 
Enterprise Capacity 

2 
Executive 31.08.2023 - 

13.09.2023 
- 

foreign 
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d 
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n 

Building for 
Developing Countries 
(AIBO) 

67 Seminar on Reform 
and Governance of 
State-owned 
Enterprises for the 
"Belt and Road" 
Countries 

1 

Executive 

31.08.2023 - 
20.09.2023 

- 

foreign 

68 Seminar on 
Construction and 
Management of 
Industrial Park for Sri 
Lanka 

1 

Executive 

13.10.2023 - 
26.10.2023 

- 

foreign 

69 Seminar on Food 
Security under the 
Global Development 
Initiative 

1 

Executive 
25.10.2023 - 
14.11.2023 

- 

foreign 

70 Seminar on Carbon 
Peak, Carbon 
Neutrality and Green 
Economy for 
Developing Countries 
(AIBO) 

1 

Executive 

14.09.2023 - 
27.09.2023 

- 

foreign 

71 Seminar for young 
media professionals 
from Developing 
Countries  

2 

Executive 
13.09.2023 - 
26.09.2023 

- 

foreign 

72 TVEC Career Platform 
Project: Policy 
Development Expertq 

1 
Executive 15.10.2023 - 

21.10.2023 
- 

foreign 

73 The Rockefeller 
Foundation 
AsiaXchange 2023 

1 
Executive 04.10.2023 - 

07.10.2023 
- 

foreign 

74 Dahongshan 
International Chan 
(Zen) Fulture Forum 

1 
Executive 19.10.2023 - 

21.10.2023 
- 

foreign 

75 Seminar on Food 
Security under the 
Global Development 
Initiative 

1 

Executive 
25.10.2023 - 
14.11.2023 

- 

foreign 

76 Seminar on Energy 
Conservation, 
Emission Reduction 
and new energy 
industry development 

1 

Executive 

26.10.2023 - 
15.11.2023 

- 

foreign 

77 Seminar on Enhancing 
Foreign Trade 
Competitiveness for 
Developing Countries 

1 

Executive 
27.102023 - 
09.11.2023 

- 

foreign 

78 Seminar on Poverty 
Eradication and Rural 
Revitalization for 
Countries around the 
Indian Ocean 

2 

Executive 

07.11.2023 - 
20.11.2023 

- 

foreign 

79 Seminar on 
Bioresource Utilization 
and Ecological 

1 
Executive 16.11.2023 - 

29.11.2023 
- 

foreign 
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n 

Coservation for 
Developing Countries 

80 Seminar on Economic 
Diplomacy - AIBO 

1 Executive 23.11.2023 - 
06.12.2023 

- foreign 

81 Seminar on Attracting 
International 
Investment for 
Developing Countries 
– AIBO 

1 

Executive 

23.11.2023 - 
06.12.2023 

- 

foreign 

 

 

The following functions are performed by the Human Resource Management 

Division 

1. Appointment of officers in the Office of the President and termination, transfer, 

release and retirement of officers in accordance with Article 41(1) of the 

Constitution. 

2. All corporate affairs from the confirmation of the appointment of the officers 

employed in the office of the President, related to the island-wide, integrated services 

and closed services, to their retirement, including the evaluation of performance 

reports and the provision of annual salary increments. 

3. Conducting efficiency cut-off examinations and/or interviews of junior staff and 

tertiary level officers of Direct Appointed Officers related to Joint Services or Direct 

Appointed Officers. 

4. To register the contract and temporary officers in the Public Service Provident Fund 

and to carry out the necessary activities to get the benefits of the Public Service 

Provident Fund for the terminated contract and temporary officers. 

5. To make all the officers of the President's Office to work effectively by providing 

local and foreign training opportunities. 

6. Proceedings related to Aggraha requests of all officers. 

7. Submission of monthly season tickets, issuance of railway passes and related bill 

settlement. 

8. Dealing with requests related to property loans and disaster loans of officers. 

9. Completion of clearance reports. 

10. Provision of reports regarding leave of all officers and related activities. 

11. Updating the information database system of officers and issuing reports. 
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Chapter 07  

Compliance Report 

 

 

  

No Applicable Requirement 

Compliance 
Status 

(Complied 
/ Not  

Complied) 

Brief 
Explanation 

for Non 
Compliance 

Corrective 
Actions 

Proposed to 
Avoid Non-
Compliance 

in Future 

1 The following financial statements / accounts have been submitted on due date  

1.1 Annual Financial Statements  Compliant.   

1.2 Advance to Public Officers 

Account  

Compliant.   

1.3 Trading and Manufacturing 

Advance Accounts (Commercial 

Advance  

Not 

applicable 

  

1.4 Accounts) Not 

applicable 

  

1.5 Stores Advance Accounts Not 

applicable 

  

1.6 Special Advance Accounts Not 

applicable 

  

2 Maintenance of Books and Registers (FR445) 

2.1 The Fixed Asset Register has 

been updated and maintained in 

terms of the Public 

Administration Circular 

No.267/2018 

Complied   

2.2 Personal emoluments register / 

Personal emoluments cards has 

been maintained and update 

Complied   

2.3 The Audit Queries Register has 

been updated and maintained 

Complied   

2.4 The Internal Audit Report has Complied    
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/ Not  
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Brief 
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for Non 
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Corrective 
Actions 

Proposed to 
Avoid Non-
Compliance 

in Future 

been updated and maintained 

2.5 All the monthly Account 

Summaries (CIGAS) have been 

prepared and submitted to the 

General Treasury on the due date 

Complied    

2.6 The Register of Cheques and 

Money Orders have been updated 

and maintained 

Complied    

2.7 The Inventory  Register has been 

updated and maintained 

(Accounts Division) 

Complied    

2.8 The Stocks  Register has been 

updated and maintained 

Complied    

2.9 The  Register of Losses has been 

updated and maintained 

Complied    

2.10 The Register of Liabilities has 

been updated and maintained 

Complied   

2.11 The Inventory  Register of 

Counterfoil Books (GA-N20) has 

been updated and maintained   

Complied   

3 Delegation of functions for Financial Control (FR135) 

3.1 The financial authority has been 

delegated within the institute 

Complied    

3.2 The delegation of financial 

authority has been 

communicated within the 

institute  

Complied    

3.3 The authority has been delegated 

in such manner so as to pass each 

transaction through two or more 

officers 

Complied    
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Compliance 
Status 

(Complied 
/ Not  

Complied) 

Brief 
Explanation 

for Non 
Compliance 

Corrective 
Actions 

Proposed to 
Avoid Non-
Compliance 

in Future 

3.4 The control has been adhered to 

by the Accountants as per the 

State Accounts Circular No. 

171/2004 dated 11.05.2014  in 

using the government payroll 

software package  

Complied    

4 Preparation of Annual Plans 

4.1 The annual action plan has been 

prepared 

 Complied    

4.2 The annual procurement plan has 

been prepared 

Complied    

4.3 The annual internal audit plan 

has been prepared 

Complied    

4.4 The annual estimate has been 

prepared and submitted to the 

NBD on due date 

Complied    

4.5 The annual cash flow has been 

submitted to the Treasury 

Operations Department on time 

Complied    

5 Audit Queries 

5.1 All the Audit Queries have been 

answered as at the date specified 

by the Auditor General   

Complied   

6 Internal Audit 

6.1 The internal audit plan have been 

prepared at the beginning of the 

year after consulting the Auditor 

General in terms of Financial 

Regulation 134 (2) DMA/1-2019 

Complied   

6.2 All the internal audit reports have 

been replied within one month 

Complied   
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Compliance 
Status 

(Complied 
/ Not  

Complied) 

Brief 
Explanation 

for Non 
Compliance 

Corrective 
Actions 

Proposed to 
Avoid Non-
Compliance 

in Future 

6.3 Copies of all the internal audit 

reports have been submitted to 

the Management Audit 

Department in terms of Sub 

section 40(4) of the National 

Audit Act No. 19 of 2018 

Complied   

6.4 All the copies of internal audit 

Reports have been submitted to 

the Auditor General in terms of 

Financial Regulation 134(3) 

Complied   

7 Audit and Management Committee 

7.1 A minimum 04 meeting of audit 

and management committee has 

been conducted during the year 

as per DMA Circular 1-2019. 

Complied   

8 Asset Management 

8.1 The information about purchases 

of assets and disposals was 

submitted to the Comptroller 

General’s Office in terms of 

Paragraph 07 of the Asset 

Management Circular No. 01/2017 

Complied   

8.2 A suitable liaison officer was 

appointed to coordinate the 

implementation of the provisions 

of the circular and the details of 

the nominated officer was sent to 

the Comptroller General’s Office 

in terms of Paragraph 13 of the 

aforesaid circular 

Complied   

8.3 The boards of survey was 

conducted and the relevant 

reports submitted to the Auditor 

Complied   
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/ Not  
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Brief 
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for Non 
Compliance 

Corrective 
Actions 

Proposed to 
Avoid Non-
Compliance 

in Future 

General on due date in terms of 

Public Finance Circular 

No.05/2016 

8.4 The excesses and deficits that 

were disclosed through the board 

of survey and other relating 

recommendations, actions were 

carried out during the period 

specified in the circular 

Complied   

8.5 The disposal of condemn articles 

had been carried out in terms of 

FR 772 

Complied   

9 Vehicle Management 

9.1 Daily running charts and monthly 

summary reports of pool vehicles 

have been prepared and 

sumbitted to the Auditor General 

on due date. 

Complied   

9.2 The condemned vehicles had 

been disposed of within a period 

of less than 6 months after 

condemning. 

Complied    

9.3 The vehicle log books had been 

maintained and updated 

Complied    

9.4 The action has been taken in 

terms of F.R. 103, 104, 109 and 

110 with regard to every vehicle 

accident 

Complied    

9.5 The fuel consumption of vehicles 

has been re-tested in terms of the 

provisions of Paragraph 3.1 of the 

Public Administration Circular 

No. 30/2016 of 29.12.2016 

Complied    
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Compliance 
Status 

(Complied 
/ Not  

Complied) 

Brief 
Explanation 

for Non 
Compliance 

Corrective 
Actions 

Proposed to 
Avoid Non-
Compliance 

in Future 

9.6 The absolute ownership of the 

leased vehicle log books has been 

transferred after the lease term 

Complied   

01 Management of Bank Accounts 

10.1 Bank reconciliation statements 

had been prepared, certified and 

submitted for audit on the due 

date. 

Complied    

10.2 Dormant bank accounts of the 

year under review or brought 

forward from the previous year 

had been settled. 

Complied    

10.3 he action had been taken in terms 

of Financial Regulations 

regarding balances that had been 

disclosed through bank 

reconciliation statements and for 

which adjustments had to be 

made, and those balances had 

been settled within one month. 

Complied    

00 Utilization of Provisions 

11.1 The provisions  allocated  had  

been spent without exceeding the 

limit 

Complied    

11.2 The liabilities are not exceeding 

the limits of the remaining 

provisions at the end of the year 

after utilizing the provisions 

made as per FR 94(1).    

Complied    

02 Advances  to  Public  Officers Account 

12.1 The limits had been complied 

with. 

Complied    
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/ Not  
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for Non 
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Corrective 
Actions 

Proposed to 
Avoid Non-
Compliance 

in Future 

12.2 A time analysis had been carried 

out on the loans in arrears 

Complied    

12.3 The loan balances in arrears for 

over one year had been settled 

Complied    

03 General Deposit Account 

13.1 The action  had  been  taken  as  

per F.R.571 in relation to disposal 

of lapsed deposits 

Complied    

13.2 The control register for general 

deposits had been updated and 

maintained 

Complied    

04 Imprest Account 

14.1 The balance in the cash book had 

been remitted to Treasury 

Operation Department at the end 

of the year under review. 

Complied    

14.2 The ad-hoc sub imprests issued 

as per F.R 371 had been settled 

within one month from the 

completion of the task. 

Complied    

14.3 The ad-hoc sub imprests had 

been issued not exceeding the 

limit approved as per F.R 371 

Complied   

14.4 The balance of the imprest 

account had been reconciled with 

the Treasury Books monthly 

Complied   

05 Revenue Account 

15.1 The refunds from the revenue 

had been made in terms of the 

regulations   

Complied   
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Compliance 
Status 

(Complied 
/ Not  

Complied) 

Brief 
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15.2 The revenue collection had been 

directly credited to the revenue 

account without credited to the 

deposit account   

Complied   

15.3 Returns of arrears of revenue 

have been forwarded to the 

Auditor General in terms of F.R 

176.   

Complied   

06 Human Resource Management 

16.1 The staff is maintained within the 

limits of approved cadre. 

Complied   

16.2 Duty lists have been given to all 

the members of the staff in 

writing 

Complied   

16.3 All reports have been submitted 

to Management Service 

Department in terms of the MSD 

Circular No.04/2017 dated 

20.09.2017 

Complied   

07 Provision of Information to the Public 

17.1 An information officer has been 

appointed and a proper register 

of information is maintained and 

updated in terms of Right To 

Information Act and Regulation   

Complied   

17.2 Information on the institution has 

been provided to the public 

through Website and facilities 

have been given to the public to 

publish appreciations/complaints 

on the institution through the 

website or other alternative 

Complied   
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ways. 

17.3 Reports have been submitted in 

accordance with Section 08 of 

Right to Information Act once or 

twice a year 

Complied   

08 Implementing Citizens Charter 

18.1 A citizens charter / Citizens 

client’s charter has been 

formulated and implemented by 

the Institution in terms of the 

circular number 05/2008 and 

05/2018(1) of Ministry of Public 

Administration and Management 

Complied   

18.2 A methodology has been devised 

by the institution in order to  

monitor and  assess the 

formulation  and the 

implementation of Citizens 

Charter / Citizens client’s charter 

as per paragraph 2.3 of the 

circular  

Complied   

09 Preparation of the Human Resource Plan 

19.1 A human resource plan has been 

prepared in terms of the format 

in Annexure 02 of Public 

Administration Circular No. 

02/2018 dated 24.01.2018. 

Complied   

19.2 The training opportunity of not 

less than 12 hours per year has 

been ensured for each member of 

the staff in the aforesaid human 

resource plan. 

Complied   
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19.3 Annual performance agreements 

have been signed for the entire 

staff based on the format in 

annexure 01 of the aforesaid 

Circular 

Complied   

19.4 A senior officer was appointed 

and assigned the responsibility of 

preparing the human resource 

development plan, organizing 

capacity building programs and 

conducting skill development 

programs as per paragraph No. 

6.5 of the aforesaid Circular 

Complied   

21 Responses to Audit Paras 

20.1 The shortcomings pointed out in 

the audit paragraphs issued by 

the Auditor General for the 

previous years have been 

rectified 

Complied   
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